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CORRECTION 2y
FIRST AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION "0z 5,
OF THE RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATIQR, INC. ** Ay 25
Vil <7

This is the First Amendment to the Declaration of the Rivers Run Homébwngr§
Association, Inc., whlch Declaration was originally filed in the Monroe County Clerk’s%
Office on August 18™, 2006 in Liber of Deeds 10343 at page 514.

M

The Declaration of the Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc. is hereby
amended to correct the legal description in order to eliminate what are now known as lots
R-69 B and R-69 C from the description so they can be re-conveyed to Rochester
Institute of Technology. A new Exhibit A is attached consisting of Lot R-69 A and
Blocks 1-18 of the Rivers Run Subdivision, Section 2 and two easements, as shown on a
map prepared by Erdman Anthony dated December 21, 2010 and filed in the Monroe
County Clerk’s Office in Liber 340 at Page 85.

Article VII concerning “Maintenance” is amended to add the following items to
those to be maintained and paid for by the Association: (a) Roof repairs and replacements
and (b) Exterior painting,.

Except as otherwise amended, the Declaration of the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. is hereby affirmed 11 force and effect.

RIVERS

-

By
?atrick Tobin, President

.

STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF MONROE ) ss:

On this@}iay of M , 2014, before me the undersigned, a notary

public in and for said state, personally appeared Patrick Tobin, personally known to me

or approved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name

is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same

in his capacity and that by his signature on trument, the individual or the person on
<

behalf of which the individual acted, execu d instrument.

JANICE A. NAST
HOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORX

wuo OIRMZTT

# Monros County Notary Publnc
Commission emummﬁ. 018

THIS CORRECTION FIRST AMENDMENT T@ DECLARATION 1S BEING RECORDED
SOLELY TO INCLUDE EXHIBIT A WHIC AS INADVERTENTLY OMITTED FROM THE
FIRST AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION WHICH WAS RECORDED IN THE MONROE
COUNTY CLERK'’S OFFICE ON OCTOBER 11, 2011 IN BOOK 11050 OF DEEDS, PAGE 283.

e e e it et i+ e s
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I hereby certify that on July 28, 2011 at a meeting of members at which a quorum
was present, the above amendment was approved by 80% of the homeowners.

RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

E3y1 _,/ﬁiﬂﬁvl¢2*iL/ Axézillf¢:,fﬁzfa__
Secretary

{2565028: )



EXHIBIT A

ALL THAT TRACT OF PARCEL OF LAND situate in the Town of Henrietta, County
of Monroe and State of New York more particularly described as Lot R-69A and Blocks
1-18 of the Rivers Run Subdivision, Section 2, as shown on the map filed in the Monroe
County Clerk’s Office in Liber 340 at page 85.

TOGETHER with the right of ingress and egress over that part of lot 68 designated “50°
wide ingress/egress easement” as shown on the same map.

ALSO, TOGETHER with the right of ingress and egress as set forth in the permanent
easement from Rochester Institute of Technology to Rivers Run, LLC dated March 15,
2006 and recorded March 15, 2006 in the Monroe county Clerk’s Office in Liber 10269
at page 562.

{2565028: }
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SECOND AMENDMENT TQ DECLARATION OF
THE RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

This is the Second Amendment to the Declaration of the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc., which Declaration was originally filed in the Monroe County Clerk’s Office on
August 18, 2006 in Liber 10343 of Deeds at page 514. A First Amendment to Declaration was
filed in the Monroe County Clerk's Office on October 11, 2011 in Liber 11050 of Deeds at Page
283. A Correction First Amendment to Declaration was filed in the Monroe County Clerk's
Office on December 24, 2014 i

n Liber 11484 of Deeds at Page 484. The Association is located
at 50 Fairwood Drive, Town of Henrietta and a le
Exhibit A.

gal description of the property is attached as

The Declaration of the Rivers Run Homeowners Assaciation, Inc, is hereby amended to
add the following paragraph, to be enumerated as Article VIIL, Paragraph D(10):

No Owner may lease a Property in the development unless
approval of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Rivers Run

Homeowners Association, Inc. (the “Association”) is obtained, and
subject to the following restrictions:

(2) No more than 10% of the homes in the Association may
be leased at any one time;

(b) An initial lease term must be written for at least 12
months;

(¢) Only the entire home (not rooms or portions of the
home) may be leased;

(d) Every lease must contain a clause by which the Tenant
agrees to abide by the Offering Plan, Declaration, By-
Laws and the Rules and Regulations of the Association;

gt:l Wd OF J30h182
Ladeud

wy313 ALNROD JOUND

(¢) The Unit shall be used for single family residential
purposes only, by qualified occupants defined as a
single person 55 years of age or older; a couple, one of
which is 55 years of age or older. In addition, one adult

child, 21 years of age or older may reside with a
qualified parent;

(f) A request for relief from the requirements of paragraphs
(a) or (b) of this paragraph may be presented to the
Board for consideration in accordance with the Rules



and Regulations of the Association and upon
demonstration of extenuating circumstances.

Except as otherwise amended, the Declaration of the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, inc. is hereby affirmed and in full force and effect.

RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.,

Howard Maslich, President

STATE OF NEW YORK )
ss:

COUNTY OF MONROE )

On this/O¢A day of December 2014, before me the undersigned, a notary public in and
for said state, personally appeared Howard Maslich, personally known to me or approved to me
on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity and that by his
signature on the instrument, the individual or the person on behalf of which the individual acted,

uted the instrument.

JAMICE A NAST
[ MOTARY PUBLC, BTATE OF NEW YoRK

mm:;“mmm1
e “Qualified In Monros County
Nofary Public Commission Expires November 13, 2016

[ hereby certify that on September 2, 2014, at a meeting of members at which a quorum
was present, the above amendment was approved by 80% of the Owners.

RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC.

By: = %»&r/\‘i’; c,éo\ﬂ

Wanda Fischer, Secretary




EXHIBIT A

ALL THAT TRACT OF PARCEL OF LAND situate in the Town of Henrietta, County
of Monroe and State of New York more particularly described as Lot R-69A and Blocks
1-18 of the Rivers Run Subdivision, Section 2, as shown on the map filed in the Monroe
County Clerk’s Office in Liber 340 at page 85.

TOGETHER with the right of ingress and egress over that part of lot 68 designated “50°
wide ingress/egress easement” as shown on the same map,

ALSO, TOGETHER with the right of ingress and egress as set forth in the permanent
easement from Rochester Institute of Technology to Rivers Run, LLC dated March 15,
2006 and recorded March 15, 2006 in the Monroe county Clerk’s Office in Liber 10269
at page 562,

{2565028: }




RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASS OCIATION, TNC.,
AMENDMENT NO. 3

NYS DEPARTMENT OF LAW FILE NUMBER: H 050036

This is the Third Amendment to the Offering plan for the Rivers Run
Homeowners Associaiion, Inc. The purpose of the amendment is to extend the term of
the offering,

L. The first closing, on Unit 304, took place on September 26, 2006 in
Pitisford, New York.

2 The Declaration of Covenants was recorded on August 18, 2006 in Liber
Ia

2, r
of Deeds 10343, page 514 in the Monroe County Clerk’s Office.

3. A reserve account has been set up and is being funded monthly. There is
no working capital fund.

4, All units except Unit 202, 304, 401, 501, 503, 504, 601 and 604 are owned
by Sponsor. There is a purchase coniract pending for-Unit 1101,

5. The initial Board of Directors is Patrick Tobin, 71 Linden Street,
Rochester, N.Y. 14620, Claudia Blumenstock, 407 Taylor Road, Honeoye Falls, New
York 14472 and Julie Fenske, 44 Mill V alley Road, Pittsford, N. Y. 14534, M. Tobin is
Vice President of Christa Construction, LLC, a principal of Sponsor; Ms. Blumenstock is
Exscutive Vice President of Sponsor and Ms. Fenske is Viee President of Operations of
Sponsor.

6. Sponsor is in control of the Board and will remain in control until all units
are sold or five (5) yoars from September 26, 2008, whichever first occurs.

7. The first meeting of the homeowners will occur after the Sponsor’s
control period has ended,

8. The Sponsor remains liable for all Association expenses over and above
those collected from the Unit owners.

9. The Sponsor has paid the most recent real property taxes for the current
year. The 2007 County tax was $9,760.59 and the 2006-7 School tax was $15,448 81
Bills have not been rendered for individual units,

10. There are no homes occupied by tenants,

11. Sponsor’s obligations to the homeowner’s association which will become

FAWORD\WRjvers RumtAmendment No. 3 revised §-29-07\Dreft 5-29-07 dec



due in the next twelve (12) months are payment of Association expenses and payments
for completion of improvements.

12, All unsold units subject io the Offering Plan are subjzct to a mortgage
with M&T Bank on which there is a current balance of $4,800,000. Ttis a demand note,
with monthly payments of interest only. When a townhome unit sells, there is a principal
paydown.

13, Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if
necessary, from other assets of Spousor.

14, The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the
Homeowners Association and under the M&7T mortgage,

5. Pat Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, are afso principals in
the Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 East Avenue, Rochester, New
York. They are current on all financial obligations pertaining 1o that project,

16.  Anupdated budget for the calendar year 2007 is attached. No financial
statements have been prepared yel as there has not been a complete year of operation.

17. There have been no other malerial changes of facts and circumstances
affecting the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself
& proj i 9=

18, The purchase contract in the offering plan was not intended for use on
newly built homes. A new form of purchase contract is atiached as Schedule A,

IN WITNESS WIEREOQF this Amendment has been signed this o™ day of
May, 2007,

RIVERS RUN, LLC

By: Living Communities, 1,.1.C.
Sole Member

By: Living Communities of Rochester, LL.C,
Member

:f‘%f@«m’-&n;}( < // ,.

Norman Spindelman,

B

<t
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SCHEDULE A
RIVERS RUN

BUDGET 2007 FISCAL YEAR OF OPERATION'
BEGINNING JANUARY, 2007

Projected Income

. N 2
Maintenance Charges

TOTAL

Projected Expenses

Electricity’
Repairs, Maintenance and Supplies
Landscaping (mowing and trimming)4
Snow removal®
Refuse Removal”
Insurance’
Manapement Fee®
Legal Fees’
Accounting Fees'”
Taxes
Real Property taxes
['ranchise and Corporate Taxes
Reserves'

i

TOTAL

Net Incomei3

524,448

$24,448

$32,316

(57868)




FOOTNOTES TOSCHEDULE A

BUDGET FOR HOA 0PERATION — Based on § cottages sold and occupied and
8 more being occupiad by year end 2007

MAINTENANCE CHARGES - Monihly maintenance charges are budgeted ta
be 5191 per month per unit based on the budgeted expenses at full baild out.
ELECTRICITY - Based an RGE average billing of $100/month for streat
lighting

4. LANBDSCAPING - Based on II'S contract for lawn cutting from PPS landscaping
for lawn cutting, spring and fall fertilization and clean up and weed control,

5. SNOW REMOVAL - Based on previous year actual and contract from Alex
Snow Removal snow plowing and sali supplies.

6, REFUSE REMOVAL- provided by Waste Management at $15.50 per unit per
month with 8 units oceupied through 6/60/07 and adding 8 more units for balance
of the year at average 4 months

7. INSURANCE - Based on cost per building from First Niagra and current coit.

8. MANAGEMENT FEE ~ Provided by IFS /month per building cottage for
maintenance services and $18.73/month per unit for administrative services that
includes budgeting, AR, AP

8. LEGAL IEES - Provided by Fix, Spindelman, Brovitz and Goldman

10. ACCOUNTING FEES ~ Based on Rotenberg cost for annual audit

11. TAXES - Based on assessment dated May 1, 2007 from Town of Henrietia, Board
of managers filing grievance to have lowered and will be meeting 6/4/07.

12. RESERVES — Caleulated based on replacement cost provided by our architect and
engineers and includes labor. Values based on 20 units built out to date and site
improvements 1/3 complete. ‘

13 NET INCONME - Developer to fund any negative variance.

ltem ~ Cost Life Cycle Annual Contribution
Ixterior Painting 5 | §5,553 5 yrs $1,111 o
buildings
Roofing - 5 $48,855 30 yrs 31,629
building B
Asphalt (60,000sf)
Sealing @ .07/sf $4,200 3 yrs $1,400
Resurfaceq@ 75/sf | $45,000 10 yrs $4.500
B Total Reserves | $8640




PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT

FOR
RIVERS RUN
TO: Rivers Run, LLC, 50 Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York, 14623, “Seile
FROM: o o Buyer”
RE: Lot __, . New York
, New York
(Street Address

OFFER TO PURCIHASE

Buyer offers to purchase the properly described below fom Seller on the following
Terms:

1. PROPERTY DESCRIPTTON

A. Property known as Lot , in the Town of Henrietta, Statz of New York,
including all improvements and all rights which the Seller has in or appurtenant Lo the property.

B. Townhome Unit to be constructed according to the plans and specifications
designated Exhibit A attached hereto and initialed by Buyer and Seller.

C. HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION: Conveyance of the lot requires mandatory
membership in Rivers Run Homeowner’s Association, Inc.. The Homeowners Association has
title to certain common areas designated on the foregoing subdivision map. Buyer understands
that an cstimated monthly fee of $190.00 is currently required from members in the homeowners®
association for maintenance of the common areas and services fo individual lots mncluding snow
plowing, trash collection and common area liability insurance, all as detailed in Rivers Run
Homeowner’s Association Offering Plan. Buyer understands that this monthly fee may change.

2 PRICE AMOUNT AND HOW IT WILL BE PAID. The purchase price is

As

(3 ). Buyer shall receive credit at closing for the deposit made pursuant to
paragraph 11 hereof. The balance of the purchase price shall be paid all in cash or certified cheek
at closing.

3. MORTGAGE CONTINGENCY. This Contract: check one only
) @ is not subject to Buyer obtaining mortgage financing
1y M is subject to Buyer obtaining mortgage financing, satisfactory to Buyer in
the minimum  amount of § no  later  than

»200__. In the event this contingency is not satisfied
or waived by said date, cither party may terminate the Contract by
delivery of written notice to the other party, all deposits shall be returned
to Buyer and neither Buyer nor Seller shal! have any further lability
under the Contract. Ifa mortgage commitment is obtained by Buyer and

SCHEDULE A



it lapses or terminates for some reason ofher than & delay in closing
caused by Buyer, and if Buyer has made a good faith effort to extend the
commitment without success, Buyer may terminate this contract within
five () business days following expiration of the commitment,

4. CLOSING DATE AND PLACE. The transfer of tite to the property shall take place at
the office of Seller’s attorney or ths office designated by Buyer’s lender on or about the .
e dayof 2200___ | provided, however, that if there is g
delay in completion of ihe improvements which is out of Seller’s control, then Seller shall be
entitled to & reasonable adjournment in the closing dute without being liahle therefor, The
transfer of title to the unit shal] take place only after or concurrently with the issuance of
a certificate of oceupaney for the unil being conveyed.

5. BUYER’S POSSESSION OF PROPERTY. Buyer shall have possession of the
property on the day of closing.

0. TITLE DOCUMENTS. . Selier shall provide the following documents in
connection with the sale.

A, Deed: Seller will deliver to Buyer at closing a properly signed and
notarized Warranty Deed with lien covenant,

B. Abstract, Bankruptey and Tax Searches, and Instrument Survey
Wap: Seller will furnish and pay for and deliver to Buyer or Buyer’s attorney at least 10
days prior ta closing, fully guaranteed tax, title and United States Court searches, and an
instrument survey of the Lot with improvements, all to be dated or redated alter the date
of this contract. Seller will pay for continuing searches to and including the day of
closing and for the instrument survey. ‘ ‘

C. Documents to be Furnished regarding the Iomeowners Association:
Since the property carries with it mandatory membership in the homeowners association,
Seller will also furnish the following items to Buyer or Buyer’s attorney at least ten (1)
days prior to closing:

a. Copy of the Offering Plan and all Amendments.
b. Name and address of insurance a gent administering common areas

insurance policy,

7. MARKETABILITY OF TITLE. The deed and other documents deliversd by
Seller shall be sufficient to convey good and marketable tile in fee simple to the
property, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject to the terms of the
Declaration, By-Laws and Olffering Plan. Buyer also agrees to accept title to the property
subject to public utility easements as long as those easements do not inlerfere with any
existing improvements. Buyer acknowledges thai no improvements may be made to the
premises without prior wrillen architectural approval from the Association Board of
Directors as set forth at length in the Declaration and By-Laws.



8. OBJECTIONS TO TITLE. If Buyer raises a valid writien objection 1o Seller’s
title which means that the title to the property is unmarketable, Seller may cancel this
contract by giving prompt written notice of cancellation to Buyer, and Buyer’s deposit
shall be retumed immediately. However, if Seller gives written notice within five ( 5)
days that Seller will cure the problem prior to the closing date, then this contyact shall
continue in force until the closing date, subject to Seller performing as promised. If
Seller fails to cure the problem within such time, Buyer will not be obligated to purchase
the property and his deposit shall be returned,

9, RECORDING COSTS, MORTGAGE TAX, TRANSFER TAX AND
CLOSING ADJUSTMENTS. Buyer will pay for recording the deed and any mortgage
and mortgage tax. Seller shall pay for any transfer tax. Water charges, sewer charges,
and current taxes computed on a {iscal year basis, excluding any delinquent items,
interest and penalties, will be prorated and adjusted between Seller and Buyer as of the
date of closing. Buyer shall also pay at closing his prorated share of the common
expenses assessment as provided for in Article VI of the Declaration and in the Offering
Plan of the Homcowners Association.

10.  ZONING. By signing this contract, Seller certifies that the property is in full
compliance with all zoning or building ordinances for use as a single family residence.

i1, DEPOSIT BY BUYER. Upon acceptance, Buyer will deposit Ten Thousand
Dallars ($10,000.00) with Selier, which deposit is to become part of the purchase price.
The Seller will hold all funds received by it from purchasers directly, or through its
agents or employeces in trust until closing. Fix Spindelman Brovitz and Goldman, PC,
attorneys at law, 295 Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200, Fairport, New York 14450, is Seller's
escrow agent who will hold funds deposited by Buyer at any time prior to the closing of
title in a special escrow account in M&T Bank, 255 East Avenue, Rochester, N.Y. 14604,
These funds shall be held in trust in accordance with (e provisions of
Section 352-(e)(2)(b) and 352-h of the General Business Law of the State of New York
and released only upon the authorization of Paula A. Lapin, altorney at Fix Spindelman,
Brovitz and Goldman, PC. In the event closing does not occur for amy reason except the
Buyer’s default under the terms of this Purchase Agreement, these funds shall be fully
returned to Buyer. A complete explanation of the escrow provisions and Buyer's rights
with respect to this escrow is set forth in Exhibit 9 of Part 1] of the Offering Plan.

12. EXTRAS. T Buyer selecls any cxiras or upgrades, they will be paid for as
follows: 50% upon selection, and 50% at closing.

13. BUYER’S FAULT. Seller may send Buyer notice of intention to cancel this
Agreement if (i) Buyer does not pay Seller the balance of the purchase price on the date
that Buyer is supposed to pay or (if) Buyer fails to perform any other obligation under
this Agreement. If Buyer does not correct the default within thirty (30) days afier Seller
has given notice, Seller may cancel this Agresment,

i4.  SELLER’S DEFAULT REMEDIES. If Sellar cancels this Agreement because

of Buyer’s defauts, the liquidated damages shall be all payments Buyer has made to



Seller up (o ten percent (10%) of the purchase price of the Townhome, plus the actual
costs Seller incurred for any extras Buyer may have ordered. If Buyer paid Seller less
than ten percent (10%) of the purchase price of the Townhome before the default, Seller
may collect, also as liquidated damages, the difference between the amount paid and ten
percent (10%) of the Purchase Price. If Seller cancels the Agreement because of Buyer’'s
default, and recovers all its liquidated damages, neither party will have any further
Liability to the other. Seller may then sell the Toswnhome to an yone else. The handling of
all deposits will be in accordance with the Fscrow Agreement contained in the Offering
Plan,

15, BROKERAGE AND REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS. It is understood and
agreed by both Buyer and Seller that Seller has retainad ReMax Realty (“ReMax”) ag
selling broker and that Seller is liable for the real estate brokerage commission payable to

ReMax resulting from this contract.

16.  SELLER'S WARRANTY. The Seller will provide the limited warranty and
construct all improvements in accordance with the Limited Warranty (“Harranty” and
Residential  Constraction  Performance  Guidelines prepared by the Rochester
Homebuilder’s Association.. A copy of the Warranty is contained in Part I of the

Offering Plan.

17. LIFE OF OFFER. Buyer agrees not Lo withdraw this Offer before o
, 200 at 5:00 P.M. :

18. RESPONSIBILITY OF PERSONS UNDER THIS CONTRACT;
ASSIGNABILITY. If more than one person signs this contract, as Buyer, each person
and any party who takes over that person’s legal position will be responsible for keeping
the promises made by Buyer in this contract. However, this contract is personal to the
parties and may not be assigned by either without the other’s consent.

19.  ENTIRE CONTRACT. This contract, when signed by both Buyer and Seller,
will be the record of the complete agreement between the Buyer and Seller concerming
the pwchase and sale of the property. No verbal agreements or promises will be binding
on either the Buyer or Seller unless they are in writing, and signed by both Buyer and
Seller. In the event of any conflict between this Contract and the Offering Plan, the terms
of the Olfering Plan shall control,

20, RECEIPT OF OTFERING PLAN. The Buyer acknowledges that he has
received a copy of the offering plan and all filed amendments af loast three (3) business
days prior to the execution of the purchase contract.



21. ATTORNEY APPROVAL. This Contract is subject to the written approval of
attorneys to Buyer and Seller within seven (7) calendar days from the date of Seller’s

acceptance,

Dated: Buyer:

Witness: e
Buyer:

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER BY SELLER

Seller certifies that it owns the property and has the power to sell the property.
Seller accepts the offer and agrees to sell on the terms and conditions set forth above,

Dated; ) Seller: RIVERS RUN, LLC
Mana»ger '
Witness:
Scller's Attorney & Address: Buyer's Attorney & Address:

Paula A. Lapin, Fsq.

Fix Spindelman Brovitz and Goldman, P.C.
295 Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200

Fairport, New York 14450

Telephone: (585) 641-8000

L-mail: plapin{@fixspin.com




RIVERS RUN [TOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
AMENDMENT NO. 4

NYS DEPARTMENT OF LAW FILE NUMBER: H 0500306

This is the Fourth Amendment to the Offering plan for the Rivers Run
Homeowners Association, Inc. The purpose of the amendment is to amend the budget
and correct some provisions ofthe offering.

1. The first closing, on Unit 304, took place on September 26, 2006 in
Pittslord, New York,

2 The Declaration of Covenants was recorded on August 18, 2006 in Liber

of Deeds 10343, page 514 in the Monroe County Clerk’s Olfice.

3 A reserve seeount has been set up at M&T Bank, It currently contains

$8.436.00. There is no working capital fund,

4, All units except Unit 201, 202, 304, 401, 501, 503, 504, 601, 604,
1102 and 1202 are-owned by Sponsor. There are purchase contracts pending for Units
1101, 702, 1401 and 404,

5. The initial Board of Directors is Patrick Tobin, 71 Lindep Street,
Rochester, N.Y. 14620, Clandia Blumenstock, 407 Taylor Road, Honcoye Falls, New
York 14472 and Anita Ellen Harris, 8334 E* Main Road, Leroy, New York 14482, Mr.
Tobin is President of Living Communities, LLC, owner o fthe § ponsor; Ms.
Blumenstock is Vice President of Business Development of Living Communities, LLC
and Ms. Harris is Vice President of Operations and Business Initiatives of Living
Communities, LLC,

6. Sponsor is in eontrol of the Board and will remain in control until all unitg
are sold or five (5) years from September 26, 2006, whichever first oceurs.

7. The first meeting of the homeowners will occur afier the Sponsor’s
control period has ended,

8. The Spensor remains liable for all Association expenses over and above
those collected fiom the first Unit owners.

9, The Sponsor has paid the most recent real property taxes for the curreat
year. The 2008 County tax was $1,257.94 and the 2007-8 School tax wag $2,609.69,

Bills have been rendered for individual units,

10. There are two homes oceupied by tenants. The total rent collected

CrDacuments and SettimgsipiobiniLocal Settings Temporary Intorne Fies'OLK2\Asmendment Mo 4-Final 4-20.02 doe



monthly is $4,000.00 per month.

11. Sponsot’s obligations to the homeowner’s association which will become
duc in the next twelve (12) months are payment of Association expenses and payments
for completion of improvements.

12. Allunsold units subject to the Offering Plan are subject to a mortgage
with M&T on which there is a current balance 0f§4,038,870.26. Itis a demand note,
with monthly payments of interest only. When a townhome unit sells, there is a principal
paydown.

13, Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if
necessary, from other assets of Sponsor.

t4. The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the
Homeowners Association and under the M&T mortgage.

5. Patrick Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, are also prineipals
in
the Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 Bast Avenue, Rochester, New

York. They are current on all financial obligations pertain ing to that project. ‘

16, The estimated date for completion of all Units is amended on page 1 in
paragraph I and on page 14 in paragraph 3 from Decemnber, 2007 to December, 2009,
The estimated date for completion of weather dependent common areas is amended on
~page 1 in paragraph 1 from Spring, 2008 to Spring, 2010,

17. Page 3 of the Plan, paragraph 2, is amended to state that the sewer and
{7 3
water laterals are the responsibility of the Homeowners Association.

18. Page 3 of the Plan, in paragraph 4, is amended to state that the Sponsor is
now constructing the three (3) story residential rental building for persons 55 and older to
the east of the HOA. It is anticipated that the rental building will be complete in the Fall
of2008. Scrvices and amenities available in the rental building, including dining,
housekeeping, maintenance and transportation will be available to HOA members on an
“a la carte” basis if they so desire.

19, Paragraph 3 on page 4 is amended to state that the athletic facilities of the
RIT Campus will be made available to HOA residents under a Rivers Run Community
membetship at an annual cost 0f $280.00 for an individual or $440.00 for a couple.

20. A new, corrected 2008 budget is atiached as Exhibit A. The budget

submitted with the prior amendment erroncously showed the actual expenses for the first
few homes. Financial statements for 2007 are attached as Exhibit B.

Crilocuments and SettingsiptobiniLocal Settings\Temporaty Intemet Files\CLEK2\Amendment No A-Final 4-26-08 doc



21 Page |, paragraph 5 and page 17, paragraph 1 are amended to clarify that
adult children of twenly-one (21} years of age or older are pernitied to live with their
parents of fifty-five (53) vears or older. These pages had eironeously stated the age to be
twenty (20) vears,

Fenske as the third initial director.

22 Page 18, paragraph 3 is amended to substitute Anita Ellen Harris for Julie

23. Page 22, paragraph 4 should show the address of [nteorated Factlity
(=4 DO =3 P
Solutions, the management company, as 841 Holt Road, Webster, New York 14580,

24, Page 23, paragraph | is amended to provide that Living Communities,
LLC, the sole member of the Sponsor, is now owned equally by Norman Spindelman,
Jules Musinger and David Christa, Patrick Tobin, a principal of Spansor, is now the

President of Living Communities, LLC,

25, There have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances

affecting the property which is the subject of this olfering or the offering itself

X
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Amendment has been signed this\f\ dayof

Yo
N \\”:\:) ,,,,,,,

April, 2008, /

RIVERS RUNJL
BONNIE L. GEORGE g7 [ /'“\\

Notary Public - Siate of Naw York By: 7 ,
No. 01GES183824 P A STy
Qualified in Monroe County Patzick f obin, Manager ,
My Commission Expires March 31, 2012 4

(- 0
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SCHEDULE A

RIVERS RUN
BUDGET FOR SECOND YEAR OF 1104 OPERATION!
BEGINNING JANUARY, 2008

Projected Income

Maintenance Charges® $133,190.00
g

Other Income -0.00-
TOTAL ' $153,190.00
Projected Expenses

Electricity? 2,844.00
Repairs, Maintenance and Supplies’ - -0.00-
Landscaping (mowing and (rimming)’ 15,525.37
Snow removal® i 47,000.00
Refuse Removal’ 12,462.00
Insurance® 27,000.00
Management Fee® 14,472.00
Legal Fees'® 700.00
Accouniing Fees'! 2,750.00
Taxes: . :

Real Property taxes' 3267.63

Franchise and Corporate Taxes . -0.00-
Reserves:!? '

Exterior Painting £4,000.00

Roofing 5,863.00

Asphalt Sealing 3.266.00

Resurface 10,500.00

Sidewalles _3.540.00 27,169.00

TOTAL $153,190.00



£

FOOTNOTES TO SCHEDULE A

The first closing took place in September of 2006. The HOA has adopted a
calendar year for operation.

Allocation of Mainienance Charses

The maintenance charges will be allocated equally to each unit and shall he
fas)

paid 1o the Association monthly. The estimated amual maintenance charge for

each unit is $2,287.00, which will be paid monthly in the amount of $191.00.

Electricity. Fach residential unit is separately metered and each unit owner will

pay clectricity consumed in his unit. There will be 27 single lamp fixtures and

6 dual lamp fixtures throughout the common arca. ME Fn sineering, P.C, 150

] g g ;

North Chestaut Streel, Rochester, New York 14604, has caleulated the annual
2 ?

electricity cost at $2,844.00 or $236.89 per month.

Repairs, Maintenance and Supplics

The Sponsor estimates that there will be no repair, maintenance or supply
charges incurred by the HOA. All common area expenses are included in
contracts  with  vendors  providing landscaping, ground maintenance,
snowplowing, insurance and trash collection. Any postage and stationery costs
associated with billing and notices to homeowners will be borne by Integrated

o &

Pacilities Solutions under its management contract,
Landscaping

Lawn care and landscape services which will include lawn care, spring clean
up, grass pick-up and trimming, mulching as needed, fall Jeaf raking, spring
and fall fertilizing, weed control and care of all landscaped areas in the
subdivision will be provided under the management contract with Integrated
Facilities Solutions, as set forth in its contract dated November 21, 2005 (the
"Management Contract”).

Snow Remov

Snow removal services consisting of plowing and shoveling snow fiom the
private road, all parking arcas, individual driveways garage cntrances and
sidewalks, as well as salting as needed will be provided under the Management
Contract at an annual cost of $47,000.

Refuse Removal

Waste Management, 4521 Steelway Boulevard North, Liverpool, New York
13090, will provide refuse removal and disposal and re-cycling Services on a
weekly basis. The budgeted figure is hased on weekly pick up of the Waste

Fwordirivers RunWootnotes - Accepled - 4-25-08.nf 1
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b

Management 96 gallon toter from each unit.

Insurance

The insurance cost of $27,000.00 is based on the quote from First Niagara
Risk Management, Inc. Blanket property insurance on all buildings will be
carried at full replacement value in the total amount of $8,700,000.00. This
umount is based on the review of the project by Lombard Insurance Agency.
With full replacement value coverage the insured will not be a co-insurer in
the event of' a partial loss. The policy shall provide that 2ach homeowner is an
additional insured party and there will be no cancellation without notice to the
Board of Directors and that there shall be a waiver of subrogation, a waiver of
invalidity because of the acts of the insured homeowners and a waiver of pro-
rata reduction if' homeowners obtain additional coverage. Direclors and
officers habilily insurance will not be oblained while the Sponsor is in
control.

In addition, there is general Hability coverage for the Association in the
amount of $2,000,000.00. The unit owners shall carry insurance o cover
interior improvements, personal property and general personal liability
coverage.

Manaeement Fee

Integrated Facilitics Solutions, 841 Holt Road, Webster, New York 14580,
will provide management services, including calculation of the budget, dealing
with all service providers, billing and collecting all maintenance charges and
general administrative services for a (otal annua} charge of $14,472. 00 as set
forth in the Management Contract.

Legal Fees
An estimate of 3700 for legal fees has been provided by Fix Spindelman
Brovitz & Goldman, P.C. f(_n general consullation which is expected to be

minimal during the early years of operation.

Accounting Fees

Rotenberg & Co. LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has provided an estimaie
for accounting service in the amount of $2,750.00 for the second vear of
operation. These services will include providing an annval audit of the
Association activities.

Taxes

The property has been assessed by the Town of Henriefta. The (axes were higher
than projected and the Sponsor filed a grievance. The grievance application was
denied. It is estimated by Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman, P.C., attorney for
Sponsor, that the Association will incur no liability for State or Federal corporate

F\wordirivers Run\Footnotes ~ Accepled - 4-35-08.1t 2



taxes or [ranchise taxes based on projec
will be liable for nonma

al New York Sta

ted budget for the second year. The HOA

e sales taxes on goods and services

purchased. Sales taxes are included in budget estimates for the various line items,

Fwardirivers Run\Fostnotes - Accepted - 425-08 rtf’

3. The estimated reserves are baed replacement costs (including labor) praovided
by Sponsor's architect and engineer. The following is a further breakdown of
those costs:
Ttemn ) Cost | Life Cycle | Annual o
- e . Contribution
Exterior Painting $20,000 3yrs 54,000
RDOﬁDg x;:] 7:; 875 30 VIS - “55.863 o 7
Asphalt (140,000s1) § 9,800 B o -
Sealing @ .07/sf o ERYS $3,266
Resurface @ 75/ | $105,000 10 yry $10,500
‘Conerete Sidewalks | $70,800 a0 . $3,540
(11,800 s1) 6/sf : R o
3




SCHEDULE B

RIVERS RUN HOMEQWNERS® ASSOCIATION
Rochester, New York

FINANCIAL REPORTS
AT

DECEMBER 31, 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

Board of Directors
Rivers Run Homeowners' Association
Rochester, Mew Yark

We have audited he accompanying balance sheat of Rivers Run Homeowners' Associalion as of
December 31, 2007, and the refated statemeants of revenues, experises, and changes in fund balances, and
cash flows for the year then ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Association's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thess financial statements bassd on our audits,

We canducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America.  Those standards require that ws plan and perfor the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement  An audit includes
examining, on a tast basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting princlnles used and signlficant estimates made by managsment,
as well as svaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 2
reasonable basis for our opinion.

“In our opinion, the finarcial slaterments referred to above present faidy, in all materiat respects, the
financial position of Rivers Run Homeownars' Associalion as of Decsmber 31, 2007, and the changes in ils
fund talances and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting ptinciples generally
accepted in the United Stales of America.

RMMg ,? (o., Lup

Rechester, New York
February 8 2008



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

Rochestar, New York

BALANCE SHEET
2007
Reservs
Operaling  Replacement
December 31, Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Asgets
Cash and Cash Eguivalents $ 1,140 $ 5220 5 6,360
Due From Developer 853 3,276 4,229
Prepaid Managsment Fees 1,436 — 1,438
Total Assets $ 3,529 $ 84906 § 12,025
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Currant Liabllities
Accrued Expenses § 100 3 — 5 100
Total Liabilities 100 —— 00
Fund Balances 3,429 8,498 1,925
Totat l.iabilities and Fund Balances’ $ 3,529 $ 8,486 $ 12,025

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements

2.



RIVERS RUN HOMEQWMERS' ASSOCIATION
Rochester, New York

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2007
Ressive
. Operating  Replacernent
Year Ended Dacember 31, Fund Fund Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses $ 2189 $ 7661 $ 9,860
Adjustments o Reconelle Excess of Revenues Over
Expsnses to Met Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Changes
Due From Developer {953) (3.276) {4,229}
Prepaid Management Fees (1.436) . (1,436}
Accrued Expenses 100 — 100
Net Cash Flows from Operating Actlviiies (90) 4,385 4,295
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalenis (90) 4,385 4,295
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,230 836 2,085
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year “E 1,140 3 5220 6,369
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash Pald During the Year for:
Income Taxes 5 —_ ] - § ——
Interest 3 o 5 — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial siatements.

4.



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Rochestsr, Hew York

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote A -

Hote B -

Note C -

Nots D -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Method of Accountlng

The Association uses fund accounting, which requires that funds, such as operating funds, deferred
maintenance funds, and funds designated for future major repairs and replacements, be classifier
separalely for accounting and reporting purposss. Dishursements fom the oparating fund are generally at
the discration of the board of directors and property manager. Disbursements from the replacement fund
generally may be made only for designated purposes.

Czsh and Cash Equivalsnis
Cash and cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, and al highty liquid debt
instrurnents with original maturities of three months or less.

Uso of Estimates

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
managemant to make estimates and assumptions that afizc! the reported amounis of assels and liabililiss
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabllities at the date of the financial statements and the reparled
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd.  Actual resulls could difier from thosa

eslimates.

Scope of Business .

The Rivers Run Homeowners' Associalion is a siatulory condominium association organized as a not-for-
profit corporation for the purposes of maintaining and preserving common property of the Rivers Run
development.  The Rivers Run Homeowners' Association condominium consists of 67 residential units
oecupying a site of approximately 14 acres located at Fairweod Drive in the town of Henritta, New York, »

Owners' Assessments '
Monthly assessments to owners were $191 for the year ended December 31, 2007. Of those amaunts,

536.00, was designated to lhe replacement fund. Thirleen units were occupied and twenty wére
completed at December 31, 2007.

Future Major Repalrs and Replacements
The Association’s governing documents require that funds be accumulated for futire mejor repairs and

replacemenis.  Accumulated funds are held in separate savings accounls and generally are not
available for expenditures for normal operations,

The board of directors conducted a study in April 2006 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the
replacerment costs of the components of common properly. The estimates were oblained from licensed
architecls and enginesrs. The unaudited table below is based on the study for all 67 uniis.

- continued -



RIVERS RUN HOMEQWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Rochester, New York

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note D -

Mote E -

Future Major Repsirs and Replacements - Continued

Annual Current
ltem Cost Life Cycla Contribution Eeszerve
Exterior Painting § 20,000 5Yrs $ 4,000 5 1250
Roofing 175,875 30Yrs 5883 1,835
Asphalt (140,000sf)
Sealing @ .07/sf 9,800 3Yrs 3,256 1,020
Resurface @ .75/sf 105,000 10 Yrs 10,500 3,281
Concrete Sidewalks
{11,800sf) 5/sf 70,600 20Yrs 3,540 1,110
Tolal $ 381,475 C o 20¥rs $ 27,189 $ 8,496

The board is funding for major repairs and replacements over the remaining usefy! fives of the
components based on the study's estimales of current teplacement costs and considering amounts
previously accumulated in the replacement fund.

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund based on eslimates of future needs for repairs
and raplacements of common property components. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimaled
future expenditures, and the variations may be malerial. Therefors, amounts accumulated In the
replacement fund may not be adequate to meet all futurs needs for major repairs and replacements If
additional funds are needed, the Asscclation has the right, subject o membership approval, o lncrease
regular assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds
are available.

Related Party :
The Associalion has a ona-year contract with Integrated Facility Solutions for management ssrvices.

The company is owned by one of the principals of the sponsor. The total value of the contract is
378,713 Jor 67 units which includes all landscaping, snow removal, maintenance services,
managsment fees, and bookkseping services.



A Lundsman Company
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May 13, 2008

Atln: Real Estate Financing Bureau
New York State Department of Law
120 Broadway

New York, New York 10271

Re: Certification by Expert on Adequacy of Budget
Rivers Run Iiomcow rs Associaiion, Inc.

Gentlemen:

The sponsor of the Ilomeowner’s Association Offering Plan for Rivers Run retained
Mayzon Corp. to 1eview the updated “Schedule A” which contain projections of income
and expenses for the 2008 year of Homeowner Association operation commencing
January 1, 2008, Our finm currently manages 2,800 residential vental units. The size of
cach property ranges from 80 units to 500 units, We have been in the management
business for over 30 years.

We understand that we are responsible for complying with Ariicle 23-A of the General
Business Law and the regulations promulgated by the Department of Law in-Part 22
insofar as they ave applicable to Schedule A. '

. We have reviewed the Schedule and investigated the facts set forth in the Schedule and
the facts underlying them with due diligence in order to form a basis for this cerlification.
We also have relied on our experience in managing residential property.

We cerlify that the projections in the “Schedule A™ appear reasonable and adequate under
disting cirewmgtances, and the prejected incoma wppear o be sufficient o meet the

anuumtbj operating expenses for the 2008 year of operation as & Homeowners
Association.

We certify that the Schedule:

(i) sets forth in detail the projected income and expense for the stated year of
HOA operation;

(ii;  affords potential investors, purchasers and participants an adequate basis
upon which to found their judgment concerning the stated year of
operation as a homeowner association;

(iii)  does not omit any material fact;

(iv)  does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact;




RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
’ AMENDMENT NO. 5
NYS DEPARTMENT OF LAW FILE NUMBER: H 050036

This is the Fifth Amendment to the Offering Plan for the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. The primary purpose of the amendment is to extend the offering.

1. A reserve account has been set up at M&T Bank, 255 East Avenue, Rochester,
New York 14604. It currently contains $23,789.26. There is no working capital fund.

2. All units except Unit 201, 202, 301, 303, 304, 401, 404, 501, 503, 504, 601, 604,
703, 1101, 1102, 1202 and 1401 are owned by Sponsor. There are purchase contracts pending
for Units 702, 1301 and 1803. Sponsor owns 75% of the Units. Purchasers may have difficulty
- obtaining a mortgage until 50% or more of the Units are sold.

3. - The current Board of Directors-is Patrick Tobin, 71 Linden Street, Rochester,
N.Y. 14602, Claudia Blumenstock, 407 Taylor Road, Honeoye Falls, New York 14472 and
Anita Ellen Harris, 8334 E. Main Road, Leroy, New York 14482, Mr. Tobin is President of
Living Communities, LLC, the sole member of the Sponsor; Ms. Blumenstock is Executive Vice
President of Sponsor and Ms. Harris is Vice President of Operations of Sponsor. -

4. Sponsor is in control of the Board and will remain in control until all units are
sold or five (5) years from September 26, 2006, whichever first occurs.

: 5. The first meeting of the homeowners will occur after the Sponsor’s control period
has ended.
6. The Sponsor remains liable for all Association expenses over and above those

collected from the first Unit owners. In 2008, these expenses totaled $15,739.00.

7. The Sponsor has paid the most recent real property taxes for the current year. The
2009 County tax was $1,319.54 and the 2008-9 School tax was $2,022.23. Bills have been
rendered for individual units. The tax amount for a completed unit is approximately $6,000.00
per year, inclusive of County and School taxes.

8. There is one home occupied by tenants. The total rent collected monthly is
$2,200.00 per month.
9. Sponsor’s obligations to the homeowner’s association which will become due in

the next twelve (12) months are payment of Association expenses and payments for completion
of improvements. There are fifty (50) more units to construct along with the common areas

around them.



10.  All unsold units subject to the Offering Plan are subject to a mortgage with M&T
on which there is a current balance of $3,738,250.00. It is a demand note, with monthly
payments of interest only. The interest rate is 2.25% over the LIBOR rate. When a townhome
unit sells, there is a principal paydown of 88% of the Unit’s purchase price.

11.  Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if necessary, from
other assets of Sponsor.

12.  The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the Homeowners
Association and under the M&T mortgage.

13.  Patrick Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, are also principals in the
Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 East Avenue, Rochester, New York and the
Plains at Parish Homestead HOA (H07-0014), Oneonta, New York. They are current on all
financial obligations pertaining to those projects. The offering plans for these projects are
available for inspection at the office of the Sponsar and at the office the New York State
Department of Law, 120 Broadway, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10271,

14. A new 2009 budget is attached as Exhibit A. A certification of the budget is
attached as Exhibit B. Financial statements for 2008 are attached as Exhibit C. )

15, A new management company has been appointed. It is Kenrick Corporation,
3495 Winton Place, Building D, Suite 4, Rochester, New York 14623. A Contract for three (3)
years has been entered into by HOA Board of Directors. A copy of the contract is attached as

Exhibit D.

, 16.  The official mailing address of the Sponsor has been changed to ¢/o Living
Communities, 302 Rivers Run, Rochester, New York 14623.

17.  There have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances affecting

the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself. {
Pt

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Amendment has been signed this __/_2-_ day of June, 2009.

RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor

By: Living Communities LLC, Sole Member

z ey | ';! '/,
By: \L }'()—\"‘#')'1-':(,%_ )Lf/’(‘j i/ {il,{ A1 iﬁ”,/’[’L"Lﬂ—-.,mm
Norman M. §piljdelman, Member

Eword\rivers Run\Amendment No. § revised 6-2-09.doc 2



SCHEDULE A
RIVERS RUN

BUDGET FOR SECOND YEAR OF HOA OPERATION
BEGINNING JANUARY, 2009

Projected Income

Maintenance Charges $153,190.00
Other Income -0.00-
TOTAL $153,190.00
Projected Expenses
Electricity 2,844.00
Repairs, Maintenance and Supplies --0.00- - -
* Landscaping (mowing and trimming) - - - 15,525.37
Snow Removal ' ’ 47,000.00
Refuse Removal 12,462.00
Insurance 27,000.00
Management Fee 14,472.00
Legal Fees - -700.00
Accounting Fees 2,750.00
Taxes:
Real Property Taxes 3,267.63
Franchise and Corporate Taxes -0.00-
Reserves: _ :
Exterior Painting $4,000.00 -
Roofing 5,863.00
Asphalt Sealing 3,266.00
Resurface 10,500.00
Sidewalks 3.540.00 27,169.00
TOTAL $153,190.00

FAWORD\Rivers Rus\SCHEDULE A - 5-20-09.doc

EXHIBIT A




kenricK

May 20, 2009

State of New York
Department of Law

Real Estate Financing Bureau
120 Broadway, 23" Floor
New York, New York 10271

"Re:  Rivers Run Homeowners Association
Rochester, Monroe County, New York

Dear Gentlemen:

The Sponsor of the Homeowner’s Association Offering Plan for the above -

captioned property retained me to review Schedule A, containing projections of income
and expenses for the current year of homeowners® association operation. Our experience
in this field includes management of commercial and residential properties in the

Rochester, New York area.

We understand that we are responsible for complying with Article 23-A of the
General Business Law and the regulations promulgated by the Department of Law in Part
22 insofar as they are applicable to Schedule A. We have reviewed the Schedule and
investigated the facts set forth in the Schedule and the facts underlying it with due .
diligence in order to form a basis for this certification. We have also relied on our
experience in managing residential properties.

We certify that the projected Schedule A appears reasonable and adequate under
existing circumstances, and the projected income appears to be sufficient to meet the
anticipated operating expenses for the projected year of homeowners association.

We certify that the Schedule:

0] sets forth in detail the projected income and expenses for the current year
of homeowners association operation; ’

(i)  affords to potential investors, purchasers, and participants an adequate
basis upon which to found their judgment concerning the current year of
operation;

(iii)  does not omit any material fact;

3495 Winton Place, Building D, Suite 4, Rochester, New York 14623 (585)424-1540 Fax: (585) 424-1553
EXHIBIT B



State of New York
Department of Law
May 20, 2009

Page 2 of 2

(iv)  doesnot contain any untrue statement of material fact;
(v)  does not contain any fraud, deception, concealment, or suppression,

(vi)  does not contain any promise or representation as to the future which is
beyond reasonable expectation or unwarranted by existing circumstances;

and

(vii) does not contain any representation or statement which is false, where we
(a) knew the truth; (b) with reasonable effort could have known the truth;
(c) made no reasonable effort to ascertain the truth; or (d) did not have
knowledge concerning the representation or statement made.

We further certify that we are not owned or controlled by the Sponsor. We
understand that a copy of this certification is intended to be incorporated into an
amendment to the Offering Plan. This statement is not intended as a guaranty or
 warranty of the income Or €Xpenses for the current year of homeowners’ association

- operation. This certification is made under the penalty of perjury for the benefit of all -
persons to whom this offer is made. We understand that violations are subject to the civil
~ and criminal penalties of the General Business Law and Penal Law. - .

KENRICK CORPORATION

‘B;iKi::;%géijzé:<//’El{i\~/ﬁ~ .

~<Rithard Aikens, President

STATE OF NEW YORK)
COUNTY OF MONROE) SS:
= |

On the&@ day of a 21 éttg___ in the year 2009 before me, the undersigned, a notary
public in and for said state, personally appeared Richard Aikens personally known to me or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity, and
that by his signature or on the instrument, the individual or the person upon behalf of which the

individual acted, executed the instrument. >
' / & . N ([L'?Qﬂ/\/\_/
Notary Publie/ ' |/
PAULA A, LAPIN

Notary Pubiic, State of New York
" No. 4627286
Cuiatiied in Onencaga County |
Commission Sxpives June 30, 20

Z:\Property Group 1\RIVERS RUN HOA\LIs to State of New York from Kenrick 5-20-09.doc



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCIATION
Rochester, New York

FINANCIAL REPORTS
AT
DECEMBER 31, 2008

EXHIIBIT C
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Rivers Run Homeowners' Association
"~ Rochester, New York

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Rivers Run Homeowners' Association as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund
balances, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

- Asscciation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based

on ouraudqts

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, .
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonabie basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the-
financial posmon of Rivers Run Homeowners' Association as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the
changes in its fund balances and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Rm«&? b Co, e

Rochester, New York
January 23, 2009
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Rochester, New York

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A -

Note B -

Note C -

Note D -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Method of Accounting
The Association uses fund accounting, which requires that funds, such as operating funds, deferred

maintenance funds, and funds designated for future major repairs and replacements,. be classified
separately for accounting and reporting purposes. Disbursements from the operating fund are generally at
the discretion of the board of directors and property manager. Disbursements from the replacement fund

generally may be made only for designated purposes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, and all highly liquid debt

instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Scope of Business - ]
The Rivers Run Homeowners' Association is a statutory condominium association organized as a not-for-

profit corporation for the purposes of maintaining and preserving common property of the Rivers Run
development. The Rivers Run Homeowners' Association condominium consists of 65 residential units
accupying a site of approximately 14 acres located at Fairwood Drive in the town of Henrietta, New York.

Owners' Assessments
Monthly assessments to owners were $191 for the year ended December 31, 2008. Of those amounts,

$36 was designated to the replacement fund. Eighteen units were occupied and thirty-two were
completed at December 31, 2008.

Future Major Repairs and Replacements ,
The Association’s governing documents require that funds be accumulated for future major repairs and

replacements. Accumulated funds are held in separate savings accounts and generally are not
available for expenditures for normal operations.

The board of directors conducted a study in April 2006 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the
replacement costs of the components of common property. The estimates were obtained from licensed
architects and engineers. The unaudited table below is based on the study for all 65 units.

- continued -



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCIATION
Rochester, New York

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note D -

Note & -

Note F -

Future Major Repairs and Replacements - continued

. Annuat Current Reserve

ftem Cost Life Cycle Contribution
Exterior Painting $ 20,000 5Yrs $ 4,000 $ 2922
Roofing 175,875 - 30Yrs 5,863 4,282
Asphalt (140,000sf)

Sealing @ .07/sf . 9,800 3Yrs . 3,266 2,388

Resurface @ .75/sf 105,000 10Yrs 10,500 7,669
Concrete Sidewalks : .

(11,800sf) 6/sf 70,800 20 Yrs ‘ 3,540 2,586
Total $ 381,475 20Yrs’ $ 27,169 © 519,845

The board is funding for major repairs and replacements over the remaining useful lives of the

- components based on the study’s estimates of current replacement costs and considering amounts - -

previously accumulated in the replacement fund. .

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund based on estimates of future needs for repairs
and replacements of common property components. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimated
fulure expenditures, and the variations may be material - Therefore, -amounts accumulated in the
replacement fund may not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If

.additional funds are needed, the Association has the right, subject to memhership approval, to increase

regular assessments, pass special assessments or delay major repairs and replacements until funds
are available. ‘

Related Party
The Association has a one-year contract with Integrated Facility Solutions for management services,

The company is owned by one of the principals of the sponsor. The total value of the contract is
$78,713 for 65 units which includes all landscaping, snow removal, maintenance services,

management fees, and bookkeeping services.

Other Matters
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Association has entered a contract with Kenrick Corporation

for management services. The contract provides for a fee of $16 per completed unit. This includes
maintenance services, management fees and bookkeeping services for the period of January 1, 2009

through December 31, 2011,
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ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

- THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 17 day of November, 2008 , by and
between the Board of Directors (the "BOARD") of Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc.
(the "ASSOCIATION"), not individually but on behalf of all of the owners from time to time in units
at Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc., Rochester, New York and on behalf of the
ASSOCIATION which is organized pursuant to the Not-for-Profit Corporation Laws of the State of
New York (the "OWNERS"), and Kenrick Corporation (the "AGENT").

RECITALS:

" Under the provisions of the purchase contract with the purchase of each unit, the Declaration
of ASSOCIATION Ownership, and the By-Laws required under the provisions of the Not-for Profit
Corporation Laws of the State of New York, the OWNERS delegate the authority to manage the
ASSOCIATION to an elected Board of Managers, which may be the Board of Directors ofa Not-for-
Profit corporation organized by the OWNERS; and .

The BOARD, on behalf of the OWNERS, desires to employ the AGENT to manage the
ASSOCIATION, and the AGENT desires to be employed to manage the ASSOCIATION,

I'T 1S AGREED:

1.0 The BOARD employs the AGENT exclusively to manage the ASSOCIATION for a
period of (3) years beginning January 1, 2009 and ending December 31, 2011, o

2.0 The AGENT shall manage the ASSOCIATION to the extent, for the period, and upon
the terms of this agreement, The AGENT shall perform the following services in the name of and on
behalf of the BOARD, and the BOARD hereby gives the AGENT the authority and powers required

to perform these services: ;

2.1. The AGENT shall collect and, as necessary, receipt for all monthly or other
assessments and other charges due to the BOARD for operation of the ASSOCIATION and all rental
or other payments from concessionaires, if any, provided that the AGENT shall have no
responsibility for collection of delinquent assessments or other charges except sending notices of

delinquency.

. 2.2  The AGENT shall maintain records showing all jts receipts and expenditures relating
to the ASSOCIATION and shal) promptly submit to the BOARD a cash receipts and disbursements
statement for the preceding month and a statement indicating the balance or deficit in the AGENT'S
account for the ASSOCIATION on or before the 20th day of the following month,

2.8  The AGENT shall prepare and submit to the BOARD, on or before sixty (60) days
prior to the start of each fiscal year (during the term of this contract, and any extensions thereof) a
recommended budget for the next year showing anticipated receipts and expenditures for such year.
If upon commencement of this contract, there is not a budget in place to run through the first ninety
(90) days of this contract, AGENT may be requested to prepare and submit a budget, at a cost to be

agreed upon at that time.
. -1l -

EXHIBIT D
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2.4  Within sixty (60) days after the end of each fiscal year, the AGENT shall submit to the
BOARD a summary of all receipts and expenditures relating to the ASSOCIATION for the
preceding year, providing that this service shall not be construed to require the AGENT to supply an
audit. Any audit required by the BOARD shall be prepared at its expense by accountants of its

selection. -

2,5  Subject to the direction and at the expense of the BOARD, the AGENT shall cause the

common elements of the ASSOCIATION to be maintained according to appropriate standards of
maintenance consistent with the character of the ASSOCIATION, including general landscape
maintenance, snow removal, refuse removal, general exterior maintenance and painting, driveway
maintenance, and the like, all as described in the Declaration and By-Laws of the ASSOCIATION.

96  AGENT shall hire, pay, negotiate collective bargaining agreements with (if necessary),
supervise, and discharge whatever personnel may be required to maintain and operate the Property
on behalf of the ASSOCIATION and in accordance with the budget, job standards, and wage rates
previously approved by the ASSOCIATION. All such personnel shall be employees of the
ASSOCIATION and not of AGENT, and all salaries, taxes, and other expenses payable to or on
account of such employees shall be operating expenses of the Property.

97  The following costs shall be paid for initially by AGENT. Immediately after payment
by AGENT, AGENT may be reimbursed out of the Operating Account.

(a)  The following are charges allowed for other services provided by the AGENT, not
included in this management agreement: ’ ’

To the Owner of the Unit:

Return check charges $25.00 per returned check

Resale certification, and
other forms required $25.00 plus postage and reproduction

upon the pending sale of a Unit

To the ASSOCIATION:

If performed at Kenrick Corporation’s Central Office.

Community mailings $.50 per unit (after four per
(incl. newsletters, year) plus postage and reproduction
and guidebooks, etc.) ‘

Special Assessments $.50 per unit (after one per year)
plus postage and reproduction
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Material reproduction, $.08 per copy except as provided
as part of this Agreement

Postage/Messenger $ Actual cost

Long distance teJephoné - $ Actual cost

2.8 Subject to the approval of the BOARD, the AGENT shall negotiate and execute on
behalf of the BOARD contracts for electricity and such other services for the common elements of the
ASSOCIATION as may be necessary or advisable. All such purchases and contracts shall be in the
name and at the expense of the ASSOCIATION. The AGENT shall also purchase on behalf of the
BOARD such equipment, tools, appliances, materials and supplies as are necessary for the proper
operation and maintenance of the ASSOCIATION. All such purchases and contracts shall be in the
name and at the expense of the ASSOCIATION. Contracts will be rebid periodically.

2.9 The AGENT shall pay from the funds of the ASSOCIATION all taxes, building
inspection fees and other governmental charges, and all other charges or obligations incurred by the
BOARD with respect to the maintenance or operation of the ASSOCIATION or incurred by the
AGENT on behalf of the BOARD pursuant to the terms of this agreement or pursuant to other
authonty granted by the BOARD.

, 2.10 The AGENT shall maintain appropriate records of all insurance coverage carried by
the BOARD. The AGENT shall cooperate with the BOARD in investigating and reporting all
accidents or claims for damage relating to the ownership, operation, and maintenance of the common
elements of the ASSOCIATION including any damage or destruction to them. The Board shall pay
to the AGENT an Insurance Claim Administration Fee equal to five percent (5%) of the cost of
restoration for any losses covered under the insurance policy protecting the ASSOCIATION'S
property or property of the individual members of the ASSOCIATION.

- 231 The AGENT will maintain an accurate and reascnably detailed record of all reports,
financial records, correspondences, and property inspections it prepares on behalf of the
ASSOCIATION.

8.0  In discharging its responsibilities under Paragraphs 2.0-2.11 inclusive of this
agreement, the AGENT shall not make any expenditures nor incur any non-recurring contractual
obligation exceeding $ 500.00 without the prior consent of the BOARD, providing that no such
consent shall be required to repay any advances made by the AGENT under the terms of Paragraph
5. Notwithstanding these limitations, the AGENT may, on behalf of the BOARD without prior
consent, expend any amount or incur a contractual obligation in any amount required to deal with
emergency conditions which may involve a danger of life or property or may threaten the safety of
the ASSOCIATION of the OWNERS and occupants or may threaten the suspension of any
necessary service to the ASSOCIATION.

40  Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the AGENT has no authority
or responsibility for maintenance of or repairs to those portions of individual dwelling units in the
ASSOCIATION, which are not definéd as portions of the "common elements” of the property. Such
maintenance and repairs shall be the sole responsibility of the OWNERS individually.

-3 -
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50  All monies collected by the AGENT on behalf of the BOARD shall be deposited in a
custodial account in a state or national bank where deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation separate and apart from AGENT'S own funds. Separate accounts shall be used

for Operating and Reserve Funds,

51  All expense of operation and management may be paid from the BOARD'S funds held
by the AGENT, and the AGENT is authorized to pay any amounts owed to the AGENT by the
BOARD from such account at any time without prior niotice to the BOARD. The AGENT shall have

no obligation to advance funds to the BOARD for any purpose whatsoever.

52  All AGENT'S employees who handle or are responsible for the safekeeping of any
monies of the BOARD shall be covered by an insurance policy protecting the BOARD, such coverage
to be in an amount and with a company determined by the AGENT at the expense of the AGENT.

6.0  The BOARD shall pay the AGENT a management fee equal to $16.00 per unit per
month for sold units. The management fee shall be paid monthly in advance. No further charge shall
be made by the AGENT for the services of the AGENT, except as otherwise expressly provided in

this agreement.

6.1 The ASSOCIATION shall deliver to the AGENT, true, complete and correct copies of
all governing documents, rules and regulations, budget and other organizational documents of the
ASSOCIATION. The ASSOCIATION will furnish the AGENT all the available architectural,
electrical, mechanical and other plans of the ASSOCTATION. All such documents shall remain at all
times the sole property of the ASSOCIATION and upon expiration or termination of this agreement,
shall be delivered by the AGENT to the ASSOCIATION.

62 OTHER: Special detailed studies and reviews, requiring the services of the Property
Manager or other members of the AGENT'S staff will be provided on a cost-not-to-exceed basis and
agreed upon between BOARD and AGENT in advance. .

6.3  The AGENT shall provide, within ten (10) days following written request from an
Owner, in accordance with State law, a certification of the status of payments, and any outstanding
balances, of all assessments, whether regular or special, and other charges or fees, certified by the
AGENT. The AGENT may charge the Owner twenty-five dollars ($25.00), plus postage, for the
preparation of such certification.

7.0  One of the AGENT'S employees shall be designated Property Manager for the
ASSOCIATION, The Property Manager or other representative of the AGENT shall attend bi-
monthly meetings of the BOARD and the annual meeting of the OWNERS. Each meeting shall be
limited in duration to two (2) hours. The AGENT shall be paid at the rate of fifty dollars ($50) per
hour for all time in excess of the allotted two (2) hours. Regular BOARD meetings will be held
during normal business hours (8:00 am-5:00 pm). The Property Manager will at the request of the

Board attend two site inspections at no charge per year.
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The Property Manager or other representative of the AGENT shall, upon not less than 36
hours notice, attend meetings other than bi-monthly meetings of the Board or annua) meeting of the
OWNERS as requested, provided that the BOARD shall pay the AGENT $50.00 per hour for the
Property Manager's or other representative's attendance at each meeting, The AGENT shall be
custodian of the official records of the BOARD and the ASSOCIATION but shall not be required to

record the minutes of the meeting.

8.0 The BOARD shall designate a single individual who shall be authorized to deal with the
AGENT on any matter relating to the management of the ASSOCIATION. The AGENT is
directed pot to accept directions or instruction with regard to the management of the
ASSOCIATION from anyone else. In the absence of any other designation by the BOARD, the
President of the BOARD shall have this authority.

9.0 The AGENT shall have no authority to make any- structural changes in the
ASSOCIATION or to make any other major alterations or additions in or to any building or
equipment therein, except such emergency repairs as may be required because of danger to life or
property or which are immediately necessary for the preservation and safety of the ASSOCIATION
or the safety of the OWNERS and occupants or are required to avoid the suspension of any
necessary service to the ASSOCIATION. :

9.1 - The AGENT has no responsibility for the compliance of the ASSOCIATION or any of
its equipment with the requirements of any ordinances, laws, rules, or regulations (including those
relating to the disposal of solid, liquid, and gaseous wastes) of the Village, Town, City, County, State
or Federal Government, or any public authority or official thereof having jurisdiction over it, except
to notify the BOARD promptly of, or forward to the BOARD promptly, any complaints, warnings,
notices, or summonses received by it relating to such matters, ,

9.2 The OWNERS represent that to the best of their knowledge the ASSOCIATION
complies with all such requirements, as named in Paragraph 9.1, and authorize the AGENT to
disclose the ownership of the ASSOCIATION to any such officials, and agree to indemnify and hold
harmless the AGENT, its representatives, servants, and employees, of and from all loss, cost,
expense, and liability whatsoever which may be imposed on them or any of them by reason of any
present or future violation or alleged violation of such laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations.

100 The BOARD shall:

10.1 Indemnify, defend, and save the AGENT harmless from all suits in connection with
the ASSOCIATION and from liability for damage to property and injuries to or death of any
employee or other person whomsoever, and carry at its own expense public liability, boiler, elevator
Hability (if elevators are part of the equipment of the ASSOCIATION), naming the BOARD and the
AGENT and adequate to protect their interest and in form, substance, and amounts reasonably
satisfactory to the AGENT and furnish to the AGENT certificates evidencing the existence of such
insurance. Unless the BOARD shall provide such insurance and furnish such certificates within
thirty (80) days from the date of this agreement, the AGENT may, but shall not be obli gated to, place

. - 5 -
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said insurance and charge the cost thereof to the account of the BOARD.

102  Payall expenses incurred by the AGENT including, without limitation, attorneys' fees
for counsel employed to represent the AGENT or the BOARD in any proceeding or suit involving an
alleged violation by the AGENT or the BOARD, or both, of any constitutional provision, statute,
ordinance, law, or regulation of any governmental body pertaining to environmental protection or
fair housing including, without limitation, thase prohibiting or making illegal discrimination on the
basis of race, creed, color, )e]igion or national origin in the sale, rental, or other disposition of
housing or any services rendered in connection therewith, Nothing herein contained shall require
the AGENT to employ counsel to represent the BOARD in any such proceeding or suit.

10.3  Anything herein to the contrary not withstanding the BOARD will not assume any
liability or respongibility or indemnification for damages, injury or death resulting from gross
negligence, illegal or criminal acts by the AGENT or its employees, and the AGENT will indemnify

. the BOARD from all damages resulting from such acts.

11.0  This agreement may be terminated by either OWNER or AGENT, with or without -
cause, at the end of the initial term or of any following term year upon the giving of sixty (60} daysO
written notice prior to the end of said initial term or following term year.

111 - Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party shall have the right to terminate this
- ‘agreement immediately, and all obligations of the parties hereunder shall cease (except as to liabilities
or obligations which have accrued or arisen prior to such termination, and obligations to insure and
indemnify), upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

: (a) BREACH OF AGREEMENT - Thirty (30) days after the receipt of notice by either
party to the other specifying in detail a material breach of this Agreement, if such breach'has not been
cured within said thirty (30) day period; or if such breach is of a nature that it cannot be cured within
said thirty (30) day period but can be cured within a reasonable time thereafter, if efforts to cure such

- breach have not commenced or/and such efforts are not proceeding and being continued diligently
both during and after such thirty (30) day period prior to the breach being cured. HOWEVER, the
breach of any obligation of either party hereunder to pay any monies to the other party under the
terms of this Agreement shall be deemed to be curable within thirty (30) days.

(b)  FAILURE TO ACT, ETC. - In the event that any insurance required of OWNER is
not maintained without any lapse, or it is alleged or charged that the Premises, or any portion
thereof, or any act or failure to act by OWNER, its agent and employees with respect to the
Premises, fails to comply with any law or regulation, or any order or ruling of any public authority,
and AGENT, in its sole discretion, considers that the action or position of OWNER or its
representatives with respect thereto may result in damage or liability to AGENT, or disciplinary
proceeding with respect to AGENT'S license, AGENT shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement at any time by written notice to OWNER ofits election to do so, which termination shall
be effective upon the service of such notice. Such termination shall not release the indemnities of

OWNER set forth herein.

11.2  Intheeventa petition of bankruptey is filed by or against the AGENT, or in the event
that the AGENT shall make an assignment for the benefit of ereditors, or take advantage of any
federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency act, either party hereto may terminate this Agreement upon

- € -
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five (5) daysO written notice to the other.

120 Any notice required or permitted to be served hereunder may be served by registered
or certified mail or in person as follows:

12.1  Ifto the AGENT:

Firm: Kenrick Corporation
Address: 8495 Winton Place, Building D, Suite 4
City: Rochester, New York 14623

12.2  Ifto the BOARD, to the President of the BOARD at his or her home address,

: Either party may change the address for notice by notice to the other party. Notice
served by mail shall be deemed to have been served when deposited in the mail.

18.0 This agreement shall be hinding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and
assigns of the AGENT and the heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns of the BOARD.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence the AGENT shall not assign its interest under this
. agreement except in connection with the sale of all or substantially all the assets of this business: in

_the event of such a sale, AGENT shall be released from liability hereunder upon the express -

-assumption of such liability by its assignee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed or caused to be affixed their respective
signatures this _25th. day of November , 2008 L

WITNESSES:

RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC, KENRICK CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

g
&
gg\)
1 |

au




RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSO(TA TION, INC.
AMENDMENT NO. ¢

r

This is the Sixth Amendmien! (o the Offering Plan for the Rive
The primany pupose of the amendiment 14 1o etend Gie o f

Tation, foe,

I Areserve aceount has been sel up at Conimunity ’wa‘bldllu
Mutual of (O EIU Banl, M in Office, P.O, Box 60095, Phoer <, Arizopa &
contaims .‘8 714444 There is no \\m}uwc‘m o fund.

3. 301, 303, 3040, 401, 404, 501, 503, 504, 001,

2, All units exeep 3
1803 are 0&*:11@! by Sponsor,
i1 V

ti
604, 702, 703, 1101, 1102, 12
contracts pending for Units 204,

3. The current Board of Divectors is Paticl: Tobin, 71 Linden Streel, Bochoste
MY, 14602, Claudis Blumenstock, 407 ‘aylor Road, Honeave Falls. New York F4472 end

Anita Ellen Harris, §334 11 Main Road, Leroy, New York 14482, My, Tobin i is Plu:df‘n {of

Living Communities, L1.C, the sole e wher of the Sponsor; Ms. Blumenstock is Fsee e Viee
President of Spongor and Ms. Harris is Vice J’imdmﬂ of Operations of Sponsor.

4. Sponsor s in cmﬂ‘ J f the Board and will remain in contiol unijl alj units are
sold ot five (5) vears from September 26, 2006, whichever fust occnrs.
5. The fist mecting of the homeownars will oceur afier the Sponsor’s contro! perivd

has ended.

6. The Spensor remains liable for all Asseciation ex penses over and above those
collected from the Unit owners. In 2009, these ex penses totaled $34,653.00.

7. The Sponsor has paid the mn~«.1 e l propey tases for the current year, The

2010 County {ax was $25,591.84 and the 2009-10 q ool tax was m7_,?.(.»8.}94 Bills hiave been
ered for individual units,

8. There is one home oecupied by tenants The tota] rept coll lected monthly |

$2,000.00 per month.

iation which will become dus 3

enses and payments for compl

the
ol T ements,

@ subject 1o line of credit wirg
Itis a demand nnte, it

interest mu e 1IBOR Rt
ba principal balance of $332.531 74 encumbe




1. Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if necessary, from
other assets of Sponsor.

12, The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating (o the Homeowners
Association and under the M&T mortgage.

13, Patrick Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, are also principals in the
Sagamore on Fast Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 Last Avenue, Rochester, New York and the
Plains at Parish Homestead 1OA (1107-0014), Onsonta, New York, They are current on 4l
financial obligations pertaining lo those projecis. The offering plans for these projects are
available for inspection at the office of the Sponsor and ai the office the New York Stte
Department of Law, 120 Broadway, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10271,

14, A pew 2010 budeet is attached as Lixhibit A, A cerlification of the budget is
f&) N fot
attached as Exhibit B. Financial statements for 2000 are attached as Fxhibit .

15 The number of lots in the development has been reduced from 7 to 65, Units
1404 and 1804 have been eliminated by changing blocks of 4 units to 3 larger units. The sive of
the blocks has not changed.

16, There have been no other material changes of facts and circumsiances allecting
the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself

'RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor

[N

Fiwordirivers RumAmendment Mo 6 4-8.-14 das



Projected Income

BUDGET FOR HIOA OPERATION
BEGINNING JANUARY, 2010

Maintenance Charges
Other Income

TOTAL

Projected Expenses

Electricity

SCHEDULE A

RIVERS RUN

Kepairs, Maintenance and Supplies
Landscaping (mowing and {trimming)
Snow Removal
Refuse Removal

Insurance

Management Fee

legal Pees

Accounting Fees

Taxes:

Reserves:

TOTAL

Real Property Taxes
Iranchise and Comporate Taxes

Exterior Painting
Roofing

Asphalt Sealing
Resurface
Sidewalks

Fwordiivers RumSCHEDULL A - 3-18-10 doc

$ 4,000.00

5,863.00
3,266.00
10,500.00

5153,190.00
-(1.00-

2,844.00
-0.00-
15,525.37
47.000.00
12,462.00
27,000.00
14.472.00
700.00
2,756.00

3,267.63
-0.00-

27,169.00

$153,190.00
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kenrick?

Corporation
April 14,2010

Mew York State Department of Law
Real Estate Financing Bureau

120 Broadway, 23" floor

New York, New York 10271

Re: Rivers Run Homeowners Association lnc.
Town of Henriella, New York

Gentlemen:

The Sponsor of the Homeowners Associalion has retained me (o review the estimated annual
budget containing projections of income and expenses for the fiseal vear, January 1, 2010 -
December 30, 2010. My expeiience in this field includes;

Involvement in the development, conversion, markeling, and management of
condominium  and homecowners associations since 1982 and, prior to that, the
construction, rehabilitation and muanagement of commercial and multi-family residential
rental properties since 1972. Current management accounts, (35) include apartments,
condominiums, homeowners associalions, and office buildings.

1 understand that T am responsible for complying with Article 23-A of the General Business Law
and the regulations promulgated by the Department of Law Part 22 insofar as they are applicable
to Schedule A.

I have reviewed the schedule and investigated the facts sel forth in Schedule A, and the facts
underlying them with due diligence in order to form a basis for this certification. T have alsq
relied on my experience in managin g residential properties.

I ceriify that the projections in Schedule A appear reasonsble and adequate under existing
circumstances, and the projected income will be sufficien! (o meet the anticipated operaling
expenses for the projected year or operation as a Homeowners Association.

I certify that the Schedule:

I sets forth in detall the terms of the projected income and expenses for the operation for
the homeowners association; appear reasonable and adequate based on present prices
(adjusted to reflect continued inflation und present levels of consumption for comparahls
units similarly situated);

W95 Winten Flace, Budldmg 1, Swe ) Rochestor, New York 14673 (38S7414.(540 Fag (

EXHIBIT B



New York State Departmient of Law

April 14, 2010
Page

o

[N]

found their judgment concerning the operation as a Homeowners Association;

3. does not omit any material f;

4. does nol conlain any untrue stalement of a material fact

6. does not contain any promise or representation as to the future which is beyond

5. does not contain any Traud, deception, concealment or suppression;

reasonable expectation or unwarranted by existing circumstances; and

7. does not confain any representation or statement which is false, where 1 (a) knew th
truth; (b) with reasonable effort could have lnown the truth; (¢} made no reasonable
cifort 1o ascertain the truth; or (d) did not have knowledge conceming the representations

or statements made.

I further certify that 1 am not owned or controlied by the Sponsor. | understand that a capy of this
Certification is inlended to be incorporated into the Offering Plan. This statement is not intended
as a guaranlce or warranly of the income and expenses for the Homeowners Association.

This certification is made under penalty of perjury for the benefit of all persons (o whom thig
offer is made. I understand that violations arc subject to the civil and eriminal penalties of th
General Business Law and Penal Law.

STATE OF NEW YORK]}
COUNTY OF MONROE} ss:

o . - Jrh
sworn to betore me this | L f day

of Apiil 2010

RE ALY

Kenrick Corporation

CHERYL K EIOIA

Matary Putle, Slatz of Mew York

Muatified in Morroa Gouety
gy # 0IG16143814

My Commission Expies D5/15/2010

2. affords potential investors, purchasers and participants an adequate basis upon which to



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

EXATIBIY C
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ROTENBERG:

what conits

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT

Board of Direclors
Rivers Run Homeowners' Assaciation
Rochestar, New York

We have sudited the accompanying balance shesls of Rivars Run Homsowners' Association as of Decembar 31, 2009
and 2008, and tha ralated stalements of ravenues, expensss, and changes in fund balances, and cash flows for the
vears then ended. These financial sislements are lhe responsipility of the Association’s managament . Qur
responsibilily is (o express ancpnicn on thase financia! sialements based or our sudits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with audting slandards genarally accepled in the United Stales of America
Those standards require that wa plan and perform the audits to oblain rzasonable assurance ahout whetheor the
financial slatemznis are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evdence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial slatements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well es evalualing'the overall financial statemant
presantalion. We belisve that our audils provids a reasonabla basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matanial respects, the financial position of
Rivers Run Homeowners' Assodiation as of Decembar 37, 2000 and 2008, and the changes in its fund balences and ils
cash flows for the ysars then endzd, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of
America

ENF P ,4{,3‘:&;;7? LA

EFP Rotanberg, LLP
Rochester, Naw York
March 3, 2010

o5 | H78 Winlen Rond § Satz 200 | Fachaeler, Maw Yok 312 | 585295 1003 | EXPRatanherony



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWHNERS' ASSOCIATION
Balance Shesis

December 31, 2009 and 2008

Current Assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounis raceivab'e
Interfund receivabls

Gue from devaloper
Prapaid expansas

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUMND BALANCES

Current Liahilities

Accounts payabla

Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities

Fund Balances

Total Lizbilities and Fund Balancas

The azcompanying neles are anint

2009 200,
Reserve Reserve
Operaling  Rsplacement Opersting  Roplacament
Eund Fund Total Fund Fund Jotal
5 1,345 5 23730 § 30,075 3 503 $ 15,452 5§ 18,045
668 - 665 351 54 801
- - - (8i3) 513
12,580 B,948 19,809 12,040 - 12,040
3,660 - 3,600 - - -
5 18,673 S 35678 3 64,252 5 12,091 3 15,845 & 31935
5 13580 § - $ 13,480 § 8562 3 - § BE62
1,564 - 1,664 100 100
15,144 - 15,144 8,662 - 8,652
3.479 35679 39,108 3428 19,845 23,274
5 18,573 5 35678 % 54,252 S 12,081 § 19845 $ 31,838

o

gral part of hase fnanclal slalzmants,



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWHERS' ASS0GIATION
Statements of Revenues, Expans
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 200!

es, and Changesin Fund Balances

Reserve Ressrve
Operating  Replacement Operating  Replacemant
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total

Revenues
tember assessments & 37,031 S 8424 5 42 455 S 23,618 3 7 S 353335
Developers' contributions 258,145 8,508 34,653 11131 4,608 15,738
Cable television gszessment 10,012 10,012 5139 . 5,135
Interest 3 - G - 24 24

Total revenuss 73,164 16,932 0,125 45,888 11,349 57 237
Expensoes
Bank service chargas - - - 120 - i2
Cable telavision 10,379 - 10,373 3,304 - 3
Directors' and officers' insurance - - - 3,342 - X
lncome laxes 100 - 100 - - -
Landscaping and snownlawing 29,808 - 28,898 18,187 - 18,187
Liability insurance 7184 - 7,154 717 - 717
Managemeant fees 3,643 - 3,643 7,228 - 7,226
Ofiice 473 - 473 - - A
Professional fees 4,766 - 4,765 Z2.445 - 2,445
Rezl eslslz taces 1,870 - 1,870 - - .
Repairs and maintenance &,452 1,068 8,560 8,118 - 6,118
Trash service 4,006 - 4,606 3463 - . 3,463
ttilities 2,338 - 2,338 955 - 966

Total expansas 73,194 1,088 74,292 45888 45 883
Excess of Revanues Over Expensas - 15,834 15,834 - 11,348 11,249
Fund Balances - Beginning 3,429 19,845 23,274 3429 8,495 11,825
Fund Balancas - Ending $ 3429 5 35678 $ 33,103 5 3,429 $ 19,845 § 23,274

The accompanying nofes are en integrsl part of thess fnancial stalaments,
3.



RIVERS RUN HOMEQWHNERS' ASSOCIATION

Statements of Cash Flows

Fer the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activitiss

Excess of Rovenuas Over Expenses
Changes in assels and liabiliiss

Accolnts receivable

inlerfund receivable

Duz from developer

Prapaid expenses

Accaounls payable

Accrizd expanses

tial cash flows fiom operating activiizs

Met Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

2008 2008
Reserve Reseive
Opszraling  Rsplacemant Opsrating  Replacement
Fund Fund Total Fund Eund Total
5 - S 15834 S 15,83 § - 3 11,3439 § 11348
(307} 540 231 (361) (540) (301}
(813} B13 - 813 {£13) -
(920} {6,848} (7,869 {11,087) 3,276 (7.811
(3,600; - (3,600 1,436 - 1436
5015 - 5018 8562 . B.552
1,464 - 1,454 - . .
842 10,238 11,088 (337) 13,372 12,535
B42, 10,238 11,004 (637} 13,272 12,633
503 18,452 18,055 1,140 6,220 5,350
§ 1,345 § 28,730 5 30078 $ 503 3 18,482 5 18,995

The acoompanying aoles are anintegral part ol {hese Brancial stalemants

-4-



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSCCIATION
Notes to Financial Statementis

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Scope of Business

Scope of Business - The Rivers Run Homeowners' Assaciation is a Homeowners assccfation organized as
a nat-for-profit corporation for the purpose of mainlaining and preserving common propery of the Rivars Run
development. The Rivars Run Homeowners' Associaton cendominium compiex consisls of 85 residential
units oceupying a site of approximately 14 acres located at Feirwood Drva in the town of Menrielta, New

York. The complex is currently being devsloped.

Use of Estimales - The preparation of financial statements in cenformily with generally accepled accolinting
principles requires management lo maks estimales and assumptions that affec! the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liailiies at the dais of the financial stalements
and the reported amounts of revenuss and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulls could differ
from these estimates. )

Method of Accounting - The Association uses fund accounting, which requires thal funds, such as
operating funds, deferrsd maintenance funds, and funds dasignated for fulure major repairs and
repiacements, be classified sepaialely for accounting and reporing purposes.  Disburssmenis from s
aperating fund are generally at the discretion of the board of diregtors and properly inanagsr. Disbursainents
from the replacement fund generally may be made only for dasignated purposes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalenis include tima deposits, ceriificatas of geposit, and
all highly liguid debt instruments with original miaturities of three months or less Accounis are insured by the
Federal Depostt Insurance Company (FDIC) up to $250,000.

Income Taxes - The Association slected to file its tax return for 2009 as a corporation on form 1120, As
such, the Association must comply with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 277, which appliss to
certain membership organizations.  Under IRC Section 277, the Assosiation is required to ssparale
membership income and expenses from non-membership income and expenses. Each componen! is
taxed separately; however, net membearship income is exenipl from taxation.if ceriain elections are
made. For the year endsd Dacember 31, 2009, the Associalion had no taxable non-membership
income. Federal and state incoms tax provisions of approximately $125 have bezn recordzad,

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issusd FASH Interpretation No. 48 ('FIN 487,
Accaunting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which prescribed a comprzhensive modsal for how a
company should measure, recognize. Present, and disclose in its financial staisments unceriain tax
positions that the company has taken or expects to lake on atax relurn. The Association adopted FIM
48 as of January 1, 2009 and thersfore, recognizes the tax benefits frorm uncertain tax positions only if it
is more likely than rot that the tax position will bz sustainsd on examination by the taxing authoritiss,
based on the technical merils of the position. The tax benefis recognized in the fedsral statements from
such posilions are measured based on the largest bensfit that has a greater than 50% likalihood of being
realized upon ultimate setflementl. There was no impact (o the Association's finanicial slaleiments a3 a
resull of the implementation of FIN 48, The Associalion's Income tax filings are subject to audi by
various taxing authorities. The Association's open audit pefiodis 2005-2008.

Subsequent Events - On May 28 2008, the FASB issued ASC 855-10 (prior authoritative fiterature:
SFAS No. 185 "Subsequent Evenls"). ASC 855-10 provides guidarce on management's assessmani of
subsequent events and requires additiona! disclosure about ths timing of meanagemsnt's assessment of
subsequen! evenis. It does nol significantly change the actounting requirements for the reporting of
subsequent events, ASC 855-10 is effective for inlerim or annual fnancial pericds ending afler
June 15,2008, The COMPANY adapted ASC 855-10 as of December 31, 2009 and aceordingly

b

assessed subsequsnt events in these annual financial statements from Decembear 31, 2009 through
March 3, 2010. The adaption of this standard did not materially impac! the Company's financial position,

0

resulis of operations, changes in fund balance or disclosures inthe financial statermenis

-5



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Notes {o Financial Statemnants

Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4,

Due from Developer

At December 31, 2003, the Asscciation was owad $19,909 from Rivers Run, LLC, the developer. The
recefvable is an unsecured and non-interast bearing loan. The amount repressnis the devsloper's
responsivility to fund the excess expenditures that exceed assessment incoms while the complex is

being developed.
Ovners' Assessments

Monthly assessments to owners were $191 for the year ended December 31, 2009, OF those amounts,
$38 was dasignated to the replacerent fund, As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, twenly four units and
eighteen units, respectively, were occupied and thirty two and thirly six, respectivaly, were complatad.

Future Major Repairs and Replacements

The Assoclation’s governing documents require that funds be accumulated for fulure major repairs and
replacements. Accumulated funds are held in separate savings accounts and gensrally are not available
for expanditures for narmal operations, .

The board of directars conducted a study in April 2005 to estimais the remaining ussful lives and the
replacement costs of the componants of common properly. The estimales were obtained from licansed
architects and engineers  The unauditsd tablz below is based on the study for all 65 units.

Life Annual Prior Current Total
Item Cost Cycle Contribution Year Reoserve Reserve
Exterior Painting 5 20,000 5yrs % 4,000 v 2,822 § 2,332 $ 5254
Rogfing 175,875 30 yrs 5,863 47282 3417 7,699
Asphalt
(140,000sf)
Sealing . ,
@ .07/sf 9,800 3yrs 3,266 2,388 1,803 4289
Resurface
@ .75/sF 105,000 10yrs 10,500 7,668 6,115 13,788
Concrete
Sidewalks .
(11,800sf) 6/sf 70,800 20 yrs 3,540 2,586 2,063 4,648
Total 5381475 20yrs s 27,169 $ 19,845 % 15,834 $ 35679

The board is funding for major repairs and replacements over the remaining useful lives of th
components based on the siudy's estimates of current replacement costs and considering amount
previously sccumulated in the replacement fund,

n M

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund bassd on estimates of future needs for repairs
and replacements of common property cemponents.  Actual expenditures may vary from the estimatad
fulure expenditures, and the variations may be malsrial. Therefors, amounts accurmulated in the
replacement fund may not be adaquate to mest all future needs for major repairs and replacements, I
additional funds are neaded, the Association has the right, subject to membership approval, 1o increase
regular assessiments, pass special assessments, or dzlay majer repairs and replacements until funds ars
available.



Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION » ATTORNEYS AT LAW

295 Woodcliff Drive

Please Reply to

Paula A, Lapin, Esq. Suite 200

Parmer Fairport, New York 14450

Eemail: plapin@fixspin.com “Telephone: (585) 641-8000
Fax: (585) 641-8080

Web Address: www.fixspin.com

January 17,2012

Living Communities
50 Fairwood Drive
Rochester, New York 14623

Attention: Mzr. Patrick Tobin
President

Re: Rivers Run Homeowners Association
Amendment No. 8

Dear Pat;

Enclosed is a copy of Amendment No. 8 to the Offering Plan for Rivers Run
Homeowners Association, together with the letter from the Attorney General’s Office accepting
said Amendment. Please copy the enclosed and insert in the front of all Plans. Please send to
all owners and contract purchasers, as well as their attorneys. Keep a record of who you send it

to and on what date.

Very truly yours,

Paulm&\

PAL:jrs
enclosures

FAWORD\Rivers Run\ltr to P. Tobin with 8th amendment 1-17-12.doc



OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Eric T, SCHNEIDERMAN (212)416-8176 Drvision or Economic JusTice
Artorngy Gavarar, Rear. Estats Fovancs Bureay

Rivers Run, LLC

c/o Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman
Attention: Paula Lapin

285 Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200
Fairport, NY 14450

RE: Rivers Run Homeowners Association
File Number: H 050036 Amendment No: 8
Date Amendment Filed: 01/08/2012 Filing Fee: $225.00
Receipt Number: 114499

Dear Sponsor:

The referenced amendment to the offering plan for the subject premises
is hereby accepted and filed. Since this amendment is submitted after the
post closing amendment has been filed, this filing is effective for twelve
months from the date of filing of this amendment. However, any material change
of fact or circumstance affecting the property or offering requires an
immediate amendment. : .

Any misstatement or concealment of material fact in the material sub-
mitted as part of this amendment renders this filing void ab initio. This
office has relied on the truth of the certifications of sponsor, sponsor's
principals, and sponsor's experts, as well as the transmittal letter of
sponsor's attorney.

Filing this amendment shall not be construed as approval of the contents
or terms thereof by the Attorney General of the State of New York, or any
waiver of or limitation on the Attorney General's authority to take enforce-
ment action for violation of Article 23-A of the General Business Law or other
applicable law. The issuance of this letter is conditioned upon the collection
of all fees imposed by law. This letter is your receipt for the filing fee.

Very truly yours,

Ve /) fade,

Nancy Hab
Assistant Attorney General #u/\)

120 BroapwAy, Ngw York, NY 10271 e Puone (212)416-8122 eFax(212)416-8179 ¢ WWAG.NY.GOV



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
AMENDMENT NO. 7

This is the Seventh Amendment to the Offering Plan for the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. The primary purpose of the amendment is to extend the offering.

1. All units except Unit 201, 202, 203, 204, 301, 303, 304, 401, 404, 501-504, 601,
702,703, 1101, 1102, 1202, 1203, 1301, 1401, 1403 and 1803 are owned by Sponsor. There is a
purchase contract pending for Units 1601 and 1801,

2. The current Board of Directors is Patrick Tobin, 71 Linden Street, Rochester,
N.Y. 14602, Susan Bussey of 5 Harleston Lane, East Rochester, New York 14445 and Anita
Ellen Harris, 8334 E. Main Road, Leroy, New York 14482. Mr. Tobin is President of Living
Communities, LLC, the sole member of the Sponsor; Ms. Heegan is the Director of Marketing
for Sponsor and Ms. Harris is Vice President of Operations of Sponsor.

3. Sponsor is in control of the Board and will remain in control until all units are
sold or five (5) years from September 26, 2006, whichever first occurs.

4. The first meeting of the homeowners will occur after the Sponsor’s control period
has ended.
5. The Sponsor remains liable for all Association expenses over and above those

collected from the Unit owners.

6. The Sponsor has paid the most recent real property taxes for the current year. The
2011 County tax was $24,589.00 and the 2010-11 School tax was $36,293.00. Bills have been
rendered for individual units.

7. There are two homes occupied by tenants. The total rent collected monthly is
$4,850.00 per month. ‘

8. Sponsor’s obligations to the homeowner’s association which will become due in
the next twelve (12) months are payment of Association expenses and payments for completion
of improvements.

9. All unsold units subject to the Offering Plan are subject to a line of credit with
M&T on which there is a current balance of $3,120,351.00. It is a demand note, with monthly
payments of interest only. The interest rate is 2.25% over the LIBOR rate. There is also a
mortgage with S&T Bank with a principal balance of $372,465.00 encumbering Lots 204, 302
and 403.

10. Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if necessary, from
other assets of Sponsor.



11.  The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the Homeowners
Association and under the M&T mortgage and has been in the 12 months preceding this
amendment.

12, Patrick Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, are also principals in the
Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 East Avenue, Rochester, New York and the
Plains at Parish Homestead HOA (H07-0014), Oneonta, New York. They are current on all
financial obligations pertaining to those projects. The offering plans for these projects are
available for inspection at the office of the Sponsor and at the office the New York State
- Department of Law, 120 Broadway, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10271.

13. A new 2011 budget is attached as Exhibit A. A certification of the budget is
attached as Exhibit B. Financial statements for 2010 are attached as Exhibit C.

14.  There have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances affecting
the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself.

RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor

FAWORDWRivers Run\Amendment No. 7 3-23-11.doc 2



Projected Income

SCHEDULE A

RIVERS RUN

BUDGET FOR HOA OPERATION
BEGINNING JANUARY, 2011

Maintenance Charges
(65 Units at $200/mo.)

TOTAL

Projected Expenses

Electricity

Repairs, Maintenance and Supplies

Landscaping (mowing and chemical applications)
Snow Removal
Refuse Removal

Insurance

Management Fee

Legal Fees

Accounting Fees
Exterior Painting

Office Expense
Taxes:
Real Property Taxes
Franchise and Corporate Taxes
Reserves:
Roofing 5,863.00
Asphalt Sealing 3,266.00
Resurface 9,333.00
Sidewalks 2.832.00
TOTAL

Exhibit A

$156,000.00

$156,000.00

2,844.00
7,000.00 .
31,220.00
38,147.00
11,140.00
21,975.00
12,480.00 -
500.00
2,750.00
2,500.00
750.00

3,300.00
100.00

21,294.00

$156,000.00
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March 23, 2011

New York State Department of Law
Real Estate Financing Bureau
120 Broadway, 23" floor

- New York, New York 10271

Re:  Rivers Run Homeowners Association Inc.
Town of Henrietta, New York

Gentlemen;:

- The Sponsor of the Homeowners Association has retained me to review the estimated annual
. budget containing projections of income and expenses for the fiscal year, January 1, 2011 -

December 30, 201 1. My experience in this field includes:

Involvement in the development, conversion, marketing, and management of
condominium and homeowners associations since 1982 and, prior to that, the
construction, rehabilitation and management of commercial and multi-family residential
rental properties since 1972. Current management accounts, (35) include apartments,
condominiums, homeowners associations, and office buildings.

I undérstand that T am responsible for complying with Article 23-A of the General Business Law
and the regulations promulgated by the Department of Law Part 22 insofar as they are applicable
to Schedule A. L

I have reviewed the schedule and investigated the facts set forth in Schedule A, and the facts
underlying them with due diligence in order to form a basis for this certification, I have also
relied on my experience in managing residential properties.

I certify that the projections in Schedule A appear reasonable and adequate under existing
circumstances, and the projected income will be sufficient to meet the anticipated operating
expenses for the projected year or operation as a Homeowners Association,

I certify that the Schedule:

1. sets forth in detail the terms of the projected income and expenses for the operation for
the homeowners association; appear reasonable and adequate based on present prices
(adjusted to reflect continued inflation and present levels of consumption for comparable
units similarly situated);

395 Wipeen Place, Bosbue bosee d Becheaen Now Yorh W23 82359031530 Faws 585) 1241383
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New York State Department of Law
March 23, 2011
Page 2

2. affords potential investors, purchasers and participants an adequate basis upon which to
found their judgment concerning the operation as a Homeowners Association;

3. does not omit any material fact;
4. does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact;
5. does not contain any fraud, deception, concealment or suppression;

6. does not confain any promise or representation as to the future which is beyond”
- reasonable expectation or unwarranted by existing circumstances; and

7. does not contain any representation or statement which is false, where 1 (a) knew the
truth; (b) with reasonable effort could have known the truth; (c) made no reasonable
effort to ascertain the truth; or (d) did not have knowledge concerning the representations
or statements made.

I further certify that I am not owned or controlled by the Sponsor. T understand that a copy of this
Certification is intended to be incorporated into the Offering Plan. This statement is not intended
as a guarantee or warranty of the income and expenses for the Homeowners Association.

This certification is made under penalty of perjury for the benefit of all persons to whom this
offer is made I understand that violations are subject to the civil and crlmma penalties of the

chard K. Azkens
Kenrick Corporation

STATE OF NEW YORK}
COUNTY OF MONROE} ss:

Sworn to before me thls 5 day
of MGrefy 2010

fﬁ(wt(,l( f( {(/UL,
Notary Public’

RKA/Ibk
CRERYL K, GIOIA
Notary Public - State of New York
No. G1GI5145814
Qualified in tA+0e County
My Commisslon Expires May 18, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Rivers Run Homeowners' Association
Rochester, New York

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Rivers Run Homeowners' Association as of December 31,2010
and 2009, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balances, and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Association's management, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audil also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Rivers Run Homeowners' Association as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the changes in its fund balances and its
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

P @Z}A/émﬁ , LLP

EFP Rotenberg, LLP
Rochester, New York
March 17, 2011
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2010 and 2609

ASBSETS

Current Assets

Cash and casbh equivalents
Accounts recelvable

Due from developer
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due'to developer
Deferred Revenue

Totai current liabilities
Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

2010 2008
Reserve Reserve
Operating Replacement Operating Replacement
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
$ 685 $ 39,437 $ 40,122 § 1345 $ 28,730 $ 30,075
1,449 - 1,449 668 - 668
- 9,060 9,060 12,960 6,949 19,909
15,101 - 15,101 3,600 - 3,800
$ 17,235 5 48,497 $ 65,732 $ 18,573 $ 35,679 $ 54,252
$ 11280 § - § 11,280 $1350 § - § 13,560
100 - 100 1,564 1,564
240 - 240 - - -
2,186 - 2,186 - .
13,808 - 13,806 15,144 - 15,144
3,429 48497 51,926 3429 35,679 39,108
$ 17,235 $ 48,497 $ 65,732 $ 18,573 $ 35,679 $ 54,252

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

.2
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2004

Revenues
Member assessments
Developers' contributions
Cable television assessment
Interest

Total revenues

Expenses
Cable television
Income taxes ‘
Landscaping and snowplowing
Liability insurance
Management fees
Office
Professional fees
Real estate taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Trash service
Utifities

Total expenses

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2010 2009
Reserve Reserve
Operating  Replacement Operating  Replacement
Fund Fund Jotal Fund Fund Total
$ 46,123 5 10,692 $ 58,815 $ 37,031 $ 8424 $ 45455
40,151 11,089 51,240 26,145 B,608 34,653
10,716 - 10,716 10,012 - 10,012
68 29 97 6 - - 6
97,058 21,810 118,868 73,194 16,932 90,126
12,509 - 12,509 10,379 - 10,379
- - - 100 - 100
47,447 - 47,447 29,898 - 29,898
10,768 - 10,759 7,154 - 7164 ..
4,944 - 4,944 3,648 - 3,648
724 ~ 724 473 - 473
3,493 - 3,493 4,768 - 4,766
2,296 - 2,298 1,970 - 1,970
6,550 8,992 15,542 8,462 1,008 - 8,560
4,873 - 4,873 4,006 - 4,006
3,463 - 3,463 2,338 - 2,338
97,058 8,992 106,050 73,194 1,098 74,292
- 12,818 12,818 - 15,834 15,834
3,429 35,679 39,108 3,429 19,845 23,274
$ 3,429 $ 48,497 $ 51,928 § 3429 § 35,679 $ 39,108

-3
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Reserve Reserve
Operating  Replacement Operating  Replacement
Fund Fund otal Fund Fund Total

Cash Flows from Operating Astivities
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 3 - $ 12,818 5 12,818 $ - % 15834 5 15834
Changes in assets and labilities

Accounts recelvable (781) - (781) {307) 540 233

Interfund receivable . - - {813) 813 -

Due from developer 13,200 (2,111) 14,089 (920) (6,949) (7,869)

Prepaid expenses (11,501) - {11,501) (3,600) - (3,600}

Accounts payable (2,300) - (2,300) 5018 - 5018

Accrued expenses (1,484) - (1,464) 1,464 - 1,464

Deferred revenue 2,188 - 2,188 - - -

Net cash flows from operating activities (660) 10,707 10,047 842 10,238 11,080
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents {660) 10,707 10,047 842 10,238 11,080
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 1,345 28,730 30,075 503 18,492 18,995
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending ° $ 685 $ 39,437 $ 40,122 $ 1,345 $ 28,730 § 30,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

a4
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1.

Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Scope of Business

Scope of Business - The Rivers Run Homeowners' Associationis a Homeowners’ association organized as
a not-for-profit corporation for the purpose of maintaining and preserving common property of the Rivers Run

_development. The Rivers Run Homeowners' Assaciation condeminiur complex consists of 85 residential

Units occupying a site of approximately 14 acres located at Fawood Drive in the fown of Henrietta, New
York. The complex is currently being developed.

Method of Accounting - The Association uses fund accouning, which requires that funds, such as

- operating funds, deferred maintenance funds, and funds designated for future major repairs and

replacements, be classified separately for accounting and repoting purposes. Disbursements from the
operating fund are generally at the discretion of the board of directors and property manager. Dishursements
from the replacement fund generally may be made only for designaed purposes,

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conlormity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assurmplions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and fiabiiies at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ .-

" from those estimates.

' Cash and Cash Eduiva!ents - Cash and cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, and

all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three monihs or less. Accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Company (FDIC) up to $250,000.

Income Taxes - The Association elected to file its tax return for 2009 as a corporation on form 1120, As
such, the Assoclation must comply with Internal Revenue Cole (IRC) Section 277, which applies to
certain membership organizations. Under IRC Section 277, he Association is required to separate
membership income and expenses from non-membership income and expenses. Each component is
taxed separately; however, net membership income is exemgl from taxation if certain_elections are
made. For the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Association had na’taxable non-
membership income. Federal and state income tax provisions of approximately $100 have been
recorded. ‘

In accordance with ASC 740-10-50, Accounting for Uncertaity in Income Taxes, the corporation
recognizes the tax benefits from uncertain tax positions onl}{ it is more fikely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merils of the
position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions are measured
based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likdihood of being realized upon ultimate
seltlement. Interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters, If incurred, are recognized as a
component of income fax expense. The corporation's income tax filings are subject to audit by various
tax authorities. The corporation’s open audit periods are 2007 though 2010,

Suhsequent Events - In accordance with ASC 855-10, the Coporation evaluated subsequent events
through March 17, 2011 the date these financial statements wereavailable to be issued.

Due from Developer

At December 31, 2010, the Association was owed'$8.820 fromRivers Run, LLC, the developer. The
recelvable is an unsecured and non-interest bearing loan. The amount represents the developer's
responsibility to fund the excess expenditures that exceed asssssment income while the complex is

being developed.

-5-
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RIVERS RUN HOMECOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3.

. Note 4.

Owners’ Assessments

Monthly assessments to owners were $191 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Of those
amounts, $36 was designated to the replacement fund. As of December 31, 2010 and 2008, twenty five
and twenty four units, respectively, were occupied and thirty seven and thirty two, respectively, were
completed.

Future Major Repairs and Replacements

The Association's governing documents require that funds be accumulated for future major repairs and
replacements, Accumulaled funds are held in separate savings accounts and generally are not available
for expenditures for normal operations.

The board of direciors conducted a study in April 2006 to estimate the remaining useful fives and the
replacement costs of the components of common property. The estimates were obtained from licensed
architects and engineers. The unaudited table below is based onthe study for all 5 units,

e .. Life Annual Prior Current Total
ltem Cost - Cycle Contribution  Year Reserve  Reserve
Exterior Painting $ 20,000 5yrs $ 4000 § 5254 $ 1,633 $ 7,142
Roofing 175,875 30yrs 5,863 7,699 2,393 10,465
Asphalt {140,000sf) = ,
sealing @ .07/sf 9,800 3yrs 3,266 4,289 1,333 5,830
Resurface @ .75/sf 105,000 10yrs 10,500 13,788 4,285 18,741
Concrete sidewalks
{11,800sf) 6/sf 70,800 20 yrs 3,540 4,649 1,445 6,319
Total $ 381,475 - § 27169  $ 35679  $ 11089  $48497

The board is funding for major repairs and replacements over the remaining usefui lives of the
components based on the study's estimates of current replacement costs and considering amounts

previously accumulated in the replacement fund.

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund based on estimates of future needs for repairs
and replacements of common property components. Actual expendilures may vary from the estimated
future expenditures, and the variations may be material. Therefore, amounts accumulated in the
replacement fund may not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If
additional funds are needed, the Association has the right, subject to membership approval, to increase
regular assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds are

available.

-6-
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
AMENDMENT NO. 8

This is the Eighth Amendment to the Offering Plan for the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. The primary purpose of the amendment is to correct the description of the
Common Areas.

1. Sponsor originally obtained the Homeowners Association property by a deed
from Rochester Institute of Technology (“RIT™). Pursuant to the Purchase Contract between the
Sponsor and RIT, two small parcels were intended to be conveyed back to RIT after various
subdivision approvals were obtained. The re-conveyance never occurred, although the required
approvals were obtained. Rochester Institute of Technology is now requiring the re-conveyance.

2. Despite the provision requiring the re-conveyance, the deed from Sponsor to the
Homeowners Association recited the two small parcels as part of the legal description of the
Homeowners Association property. The Declaration and Homeowners Association deed will be
corrected to delete these parcels. Consent of the homeowners has been obtained at a special
meeting held on July 28, 2011.

3. The two parcels are shown on a map attached as Exhibit A. The more southerly
parcel is not used by the homeowners. The more northerly parcel is adjacent to RIT’s boathouse
and contains a gazebo that is used by residents. The property is on the Genesee River. In
exchange for the re-conveyance, RIT is granting a license to the Homeowners Association so
they can continue to use the gazebo parcel as before.

4. In the event the license is ever terminated, RIT has agreed to substitute another
waterfront parcel with the same improvements. A copy of the license agreement is attached to
this amendment as Exhibit B.

5. Transfer of control of the Homeowners Association passed to the homeowners on
September 26, 2011. Now that the control has passed, there is a written agreement between the
Sponsor and the HOA regarding the use of the adjacent Riparian apartment building which is not
part of the HOA , but from which the HOA members may buy certain services, such as meals. A
copy of the agreement is attached as Exhibit C,

A

6. Due to the re-design of several units, there are now & units in the subdivision,
instead of the original 67 intended for the parcel.

7. The homeowners have agreed to several changes to the By-Laws. The
amendments to the By-Laws is attached as Exhibit D.

8. The homeowners association has granted an easement for access and maintenance

to the Sponsor so that Sponsor can continue to plow the main walkway through the Premises and
maintain the 5 drainage ponds. A copy of the easement is attached as Exhibit E.

FAWORD\Rivers RumAmendment No. § 6.2011



9. There have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances affecting
the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself.

RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor

FAWORD\Rivers Run\Amendment No. 8 10-10-2011.doc
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ROCHESTER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE (“LICENSE”) TO
RIVERS RUN LLC
TO ACCESS
LOT NO. R-69C AS SHOWN ON MAP ENTITLED
“RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 69 OF THE RIVERS RUN SUBDIVISION, SECTION 2,
FILED IN THE MONROE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE IN LIBER 340 OF MAPS, PAGE 85.
(“PARCEL™)
TOWN OF HENRIETTA, MONROE COUNTY

THIS LICENSE, dated as of September __, 2011, is by and between ROCHESTER
INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, a New York educational corporation having an office at Five
Lomb Memorial Drive, Rochester, New York 14623 (“RIT”) and RIVERS RUN LLC, a New
York limited liability company having an office at 50 Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York
14623 (“PERMITTEE”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Contract for the Purchase and Sale of Real Property dated
June 13, 2005, as amended by Amendment to Contract for the Purchase and Sale of Real
Property dated March 15, 2006 (“Agreement™), Rivers Run, LLC has caused the Parcel to be
resubdivided and has reconveyed the Parcel to RIT; ‘

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides that PERMITTEE shall have vehicular and
pedestrian access to the Parcel for access to the Genesee River for recreational uses, as well as
certain other rights and obligations as set forth more fully herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of One and no/100 ($1.00) Dollar and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. RIT agrees to permit PERMITTEE, its agents, employees, contractors,
subcontractors, visitors, tenants and owners of the units of the adjacent project developed by
PERMITTEE (the “Rivers Run Project”) ingress and egress by foot or vehicle over the Parcel on
a non-exclusive basis for vehicular and pedestrian access to the Genesee River and for
recreational purposes. Subject to the provisions of this License, recreational users of the Parcel
shall have permission to park up to six (6) standard size automobiles in the designated parking

areas and no other areas whatsoever.

2. PERMITTEE shall exercise its right of access herein granted so as not to interfere
with or endanger the use and enjoyment of the Parcel by RIT, or use of RIT’s other adjacent

property.
3. The PERMITTEE shall be solely responsible for the proper handling and disposal
of all trash or rubbish carried on to the Parcel.

4. The PERMITTEE hereby indemnifies and holds RIT and their respective
affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns harmless from and
against any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, losses, costs, liabilities, damages,

134357643 Ex B
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injuries, penalties, fines, expenses or otherwise, of any and every kind whatsoever (including but
not limited to, reasonable attorneys fees and costs) arising from or in connection with Access by
PERMITTEE its agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, visitors, tenants and owners of
the units of the adjacent project developed by PERMITTEE (collectively, the “PERMITEE
PARTIES”) and its use of the Parcel or other activities of the PERMITTEE PARTIES. This
indemnification shall survive any termination of this Permit.

5. The PERMITTEE agrees to obtain and maintain at the expense of the
PERMITTEE, commercial general liability insurance with a combined single limit for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)
per person and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. The coverage shall provide
and encompass at least the following: (a) blanket written contractual liability covering all
indemnity agreements, including all indemnity obligations contained in this permit;
(b) commercial general liability coverage written on an occurrence form; (c) endorsement
naming RIT as additional insured. The PERMITTEE shall furnish a copy of each policy of
insurance used to satisfy the requirements of this provision to RIT within fifteen (15) days of
execution of this permit. Each policy shall be maintained in force as long as this permit is in
force, shall be issued by an insurance company or insurance companies licensed by the State of
New York, and shall provide that no policy cancellation, non-renewal or material modification
shall be effective except upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to RIT.

6. All notices, certificates, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed sufficiently given if (a) mailed by United States certified mail postage
prepaid, (b) sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier, or (c) delivered personally, to RIT
and the PERMITTEE as the case may be, addressed to the party’s respective address as set forth
at the beginning of this permit or at such other address as the party may give notice to the other
party hereunder. Such notices, certificates, and other communications shall be deemed given or
served two (2) days after the date deposited in the United States mails in the manner aforesaid or
one (1) day after the date deposited with a nationally recognized overnight courier or on the date
of delivery, or refusal thereof, if delivered personally.

7. PERMITTEE shall take good care of the Parcel and all improvements and
appurtenances thereto now or subsequently constructed by PERMITTEE, make all repairs to the
Parcel and all such improvements as may be affected by the PERMITTEE PARTIES use thereof.
RIT shall not be responsible in any manner for loss of, or damage to, the Parcel, or any of the
improvements, fixtures or appurtenances from any cause whatsoever except as caused by RIT’s
negligence, and PERMITTEE assumes all risk(s) therefor. In addition, PERMITTEE shall
remove snow and ice and maintain the lawns and landscaping as is deemed necessary by the
PERMITTEE PARTIES for its purposes hereunder. All of the foregoing maintenance and repair
of the Parcel and all improvements and appurtenances, including removing snow and ice, are to
be performed by PERMITEE at PERMITTEE'’s sole cost and expense.

8. PERMITTEE may construct at PERMITTEE’S expense, for RIT and
PERMITTEE’S benefit, non-permanent recreational structures (no foundations), such as docks,
provided that PERMITTEE shall first submit drawings and specifications for such improvements
to RIT for RIT’s approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Further
notwithstanding the foregoing the RIT and PERMITTEE acknowledge that PERMITTEE has

134357643
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previously constructed the following improvements to the Parcel which improvements RIT has
consented to and which shall remain: grading, seeding, parking area, trees and gazebo; provided
that RIT’s consent shall not be construed as relieving PERMITTEE from its obligation to comply
with applicable laws with respect to the maintenance and repair of same.

9, In the event all or a portion of the Parcel becomes subject to taxes due to
PERMITTEE'’S use or other Rivers Run Project users, PERMITTEE shall be solely responsible
for payment of such taxes.

10.  RIT shall have the right, on at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior written
notice to PERMITTEE, at RIT’s sole cost and expense, to substitute other property fronting on
the Genesee River owned or to be acquired by RIT (the “Substitute River Parcel”) for the Parcel,
subject to the following terms and conditions:

A) the Substitute River Parcel shall be contiguous to the remainder of the Rivers Run
Project, not including the Parcel,

B) the area of the Substitute River Parcel shall be not less than ninety (90%) percent of
the area of the Parcel;

C) the frontage of the Substitute River Parcel on the Genesee River shall be not less than
ninety (90%) percent of the frontage on the Genesee River of the Parcel;

D) RIT shall, at RIT’s sole cost and expenses, relocate or reconstruct on the Substitute
River Parcel any improvements constructed by PERMITTEE on the Parcel (the “River
Parcel Improvements™). Such relocation or reconstruction by RIT shall also include a
relocation - or reconstruction, at- RIT’s sole cost and expense, of any improvements
constructed by PERMITTEE on the adjacent Rivers Run Project necessary to connect the
River Parce]l Improvements with the improvements constructed by PERMITTEE on the

adjacent Rivers Run Project;

E) RIT shall prepare and deliver to PERMITTEE at RIT’s sole cost and expense, an
amendment to this Permit transferring the Permit to the Substitute River Parcel.

11,  This Permit shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of New York.

12, The rights herein are personal in nature and PERMITTEE is not permitted to
assign any of its rights hereunder without the prior written consent of RIT.

13.  This Permit represents the entire agreement between the parties relative to the
Access contemplated hereunder. The terms and conditions hereof can be modified only pursuant
to a written instrument executed on behalf of each of the parties hereto.

[NO FURTHER TEXT; SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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14. This Permit may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original, but of which, together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

ROCHESTER STITU@F TEC?NOLOGY
By: R N

Name: James Bl Watters
Title: Seniqr Yce President of Finance and

Administration

PERMITTEE:

RIVERS R
By:

Nmer ] Pl T BB
Title: %fw

134357642



AGREEMENT

This is an agreement dated as of September 7, 2011, between RIVERS RU N, LLC, {LLC} of 50 Fairwood
Drive, ROCHESTER, NY 14623 and RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSQCIATION, INC. {HOA) of 50 Fairwood
Drive , Rochester, NY 14623.

RECITALS

1. LLCcreated a living community known as Rivers Run. The community consists of 62 cottagesin
an HOA and, on a separate parcel of land, a rental building for senior citizens known as the
Riparian.

2. The cottage residents receive a number of services and amenities at the Riparian. These are
contained in the resident’s handbook.

3. LLCis transferring control of the HOA to the cottage residents. The cottage residents have
requested a formalization of the services available to them at the Riparian.

AGREEMENT
In consideration of the transfer of control and mutual covenants, the parties agree as follows:

1. The following services shall be made available to HOA by LLC, owner of the Riparian, on a
fee for service basis:
a. Housekeeping
b, Dining
¢. Transportation
d. Facsimile and copying

2. The following services and facilities shall be made available to the HOA by LLC at the

Riparian at no charge:

a. lostand found

b. package delivery

€. events registration

d. use of exterior common areas including the gazebo , walking paths and the Riverfront.

e. Use of indoor common areas including atrium lobby, computer room , café { food for
purchase), wellness center, library, lecture room ,private dining room and club room.

3. The following are also available to the HOA at no charge :
a. Monitoring of emergency calls

b. Wellness program
c. Priority in selection and leasing of an apartment in the Riparian, based on availability.

Ev. ¢



4. These provisions shall bind the parties and their successors or assigns.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement as follows:
Rivers Run//LL

By:
(g 4
Pag}ick Tobin, Manager

Rivers Run Hopepwners Association, Inc.

By:

// , President



OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Eric T. SCHNEIDERMAN Division oF Economic JusTice

ATTORNEY GENERAL R
AL EsTaTE Finance
(212)416-8176 ANce Burgau

Rivers Run, LLC

c/o Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman
Attention: Paula Lapin g
295 Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200
Fairport, NY 14450

RE: Rivers Run Homeowners Association
File Number: H 050036 Amendment No: 9
Date Bmendment Filed: 01/18/2013 ¥iling Fee: $225.00
Receipt Number: 119653

Dear Sponsor:

The referenced amendment to the offering plan for the subject premises
is hereby accepted and filed. Since this amendment is submitted after the
post closing amendment has been filed, this filing is effective for twelve
months from the date of filing of this amendment . However, any material change
of fact or circumstance affecting the property or offering regquires an
immediate amendment.

Any misstatement or concealment of material fact in the material sub-
mitted as part of .this amendment renders this filing void.ab initio. This
office has relied on the truth of the certifications of sponsor, sponsor's
principals, and sponsor's experts, as well as Lthe transmittal letter of
sponsor's attorney.

Filing this amendment shall not be construed as approval of the contents
or terms thereof by the Attorney General of the State of New York, or any
waiver of or limitation on the Attorney General's authority to take enforce-
ment action for violation of Article 23-A of the General Business Law or other
applicable law. The issuance of this letter is conditioned upon the collection
of all fees imposed by law. This letter is your receipt for the filing fee.

Very truly yours,

I
'+

f,’ yj : ’ .
.”/(,4;&67 /VZMQZ / (/&{
‘Nancy Haber [~

Assistant Attorney General

120 BroaDwAY, NEW YORK, NY 10271 e PHONE (212)416-8122 8 FAX (212)416-8179 & WWW. AG.NY.GOV



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
AMENDMENT NO. 9

This is the Ninth Amendment to the Offering Plan for the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. The primary purpose of the amendment is to extend the offering and amend the
escrow regulations.

1. Thirty-two lots remain unsold.

2. Sponsor transferred control of the Board to the homeowners in September of
2011.

3. The Sponsor is paying Association expenses for all Units they own which are

receiving services. The total amount being paid by Sponsor is $840 per month.

4, The Sponsor has paid the most recent real property taxes and School taxes for the
current year in the amount of $38,716. Bills have been rendered for individual units.

5. There are no homes occupied by tenants.

6. Sponsor’s obligations to the homeowner’s association which will become due in
the next twelve (12) months are payment of Association expenses for its Lots and payments for
completion of improvements.

7. All unsold units subject to the Offering Plan are subject to a line of credit with
M&T on which there is a current balance of $1,768,150. It is a demand note, with monthly
payments of interest only. The interest rate is 2.25% over the LIBOR rate.

8. Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if necessary, from
other assets of Sponsor.

9. The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the Homeowners
Association and under the M&T mortgage and has been in the 12 months preceding this
amendment.

10.  Patrick Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, were also principals in
the Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 East Avenue, Rochester, New York and
the Plains at Parish Homestead HOA (H07-0014), Oneonta, New York. Both of these projects
are now sold out. The offering plans for these projects are available for inspection at the office
of the Sponsor and at the office the New York State Department of Law, 120 Broadway, 23rd
Floor, New York, New York 10271.

11. A 2012 budget is attached as Exhibit A. Financial statements for 2011 are
attached as Exhibit B.



12 REVISED PROCEDURE TQ PURCHASE SECTION OF THE PLAN

The Procedure to Purchase Section of the Plan regarding escrow trust fund requirements
is hereby replaced with the following disclosures set forth herein. The Purchase Agreement, as
set forth in Part IT of the Plan, is hereby replaced with the revised Purchase Agreement, attached
hereto as Exhibit C. The Escrow Agreement, as set forth in Part II of the Plan, is hereby replaced
with the revised Escrow Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit D.

The Escrow Apent:

The law firm of Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman, P.C., with an address of 295
Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200, Fairport, New York 14450, telephone number 585-641-8000, shall
serve as escrow agent (“Escrow Agent”) for Sponsor and Purchaser. Escrow Agent has
designated the following attorneys to serve as signatories: Paula A. Lapin, Esq., Jerry A.
Goldman, Esq., and Richard S. Brovitz, Esq. All designated signatories are admitted to practice
law in the State of New York. Neither the Escrow Agent nor any authorized signatories on the
account are the Sponsor, Selling Agent, Managing Agent or any other principal thereof, or have
any beneficial interest in any of the foregoing.

The Escrow Account:

The Escrow Agent has established the escrow account at M&T Bank, located at 255 East
Avenue, Rochester, in the State of New York (“Bank™), a bank authorized to do business in the
State of New York. The escrow account is entitled Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman, P.C., as
Escrow Agent for Rivers Run Homeowners Association (“Escrow Account”). The Escrow
Account is federally insured by the FDIC at the maximum amount of $250,000 per deposit. Any
deposit made in excess of $250,000 will not be insured. ’ '

All Deposits received by Purchaser shall be in the form of checks and shall be made
payable to or endorsed by the Purchaser to the order of Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman,
P.C., as Escrow Agent.

Any Deposits made for upgrades, extras, or custom work shall be initially deposited into
the Escrow Account, and released in accordance with the terms of a written agreement between
Purchaser and Sponsor.,

The Escrow Account shall be a non-interest bearing IOLA account pursuant to New York

State Judiciary Law § 497. No fees of any kind may be deducted from the Escrow Account, and
the Sponsor shall bear all costs associated with the maintenance of the Escrow Account.

Escrow Agreement:

The Escrow Agreement, as revised to reflect the foregoing, is attached hereto as Exhibit
D. The Escrow Agreement must be executed by the Sponsor, Purchaser and Escrow Agent,

FAWORDWRivers RumM\Amendment No. 9 2013 - CLEAN.doc 2



Notification to Purchaser:

Within five (5) business days after the Purchase Agreement has been tendered to the
Escrow Agent along with the Deposit, the Escrow Agent shall sign the Purchase Agreement and
place the Deposit into the Escrow Account. Within ten (10) business days of the placing of the
deposit in the Escrow Account, Escrow Agent shall provide written notice to Purchaser and
Sponsor, confirming the Deposit. The notice shall provide the account number and the initial
interest rate, if any, to be earned on the Deposit. Any Deposits made for upgrades, extras, or
custom work shall be initially deposited into the Escrow Account, and released in accordance
with the terms of a written agreement between Purchaser and Sponsor.

The Escrow Agent is obligated to send notice to the Purchaser once the Deposit is placed
in the Escrow Account. If the Purchaser does not receive notice of such deposit within fifteen
(15) business days after tender of the Deposit, he or she may cancel the Purchase Agreement
within ninety (90) days after tender of the Purchase Agreement and Deposit to Escrow Agent.
Complaints concerning the failure to honor such cancellation requests may be referred to the
New York State Department of Law, Real Estate Finance Bureau, 120 Broadway, 23" Floor,
New York, N.Y. 10271, Rescission shall not be afforded where proof satisfactory to the
Attorney General is submitted establishing that the Deposit was timely placed in the Escrow
Account in accordance with the New York State Department of Law’s regulations concerning
Deposits and requisite notice was timely mailed to the Purchaser.

Release of Funds:

All Deposits, except for advances made for upgrades, extras, or custom work received in
connection with the Purchase Agreement, are and shall continue to be the Purchaser’s money,
and may not be comingled with any other money or pledged or hypothecated by Sponsor, as per
GBL § 352-h.

Under no circumstances shall Sponsor seek or accept release of the Deposit of a
defaulting Purchaser until after consummation of the Plan, as evidenced by the acceptance of an
effectiveness amendment by the New York State Department of Law. Consummation of the
Plan does not relieve the Sponsor of its obligation pursuant to GBL §§ 352-3(2-b) and 352-h.

The Escrow Agent shall release the Deposit if so directed:

a. pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Escrow Agreement
upon closing of title to the Unit; or

b. in a subsequent writing signed by both Sponsor and Purchaser; or
c. by a final, non-appealable order or judgment of a court.

If the Escrow Agent is not directed to release the Deposit pursuant to paragraphs (a)
through (c) above, and the Escrow Agent receives a request by either party to release the

FAWORDRivers Run\Amendment No. 9 2013 - CLEAN.doc 3



Deposit, then the Escrow Agent must give both the Purchaser and Sponsor prior written notice of
not fewer than thirty (30) days before releasing the Deposit. If the Escrow Agent has not
received notice of objection to the release of the Deposit prior to the expiration of the thirty (30)
day period, the Deposit shall be released and the Escrow Agent shall provide further written
notice to both parties informing them of said release. If the Escrow Agent receives a written
notice from either party objecting to the release of the Deposit within said thirty (30) day period,
the Escrow Agent shall continue to hold the Deposit until otherwise directed pursuant to
paragraphs (a) through (c) above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Escrow Agent shall have
the right at any time to deposit the Deposit contained in the Escrow Account with the clerk of the
county where the Unit is located and shall give written notice to both parties of such deposit.

The Sponsor shall not object to the release of the Deposit to:

a. a Purchaser who timely rescinds in accordance with an offer of rescission
contained in the Plan or an Amendment to the Plan; or

b. all Purchasers after an Amendment abandoning the Plan is accepted for
filing by the Department of Law.

The Department of Law may perform random reviews and audits of any records
involving the Escrow Account to determine compliance with all applicable statutes and
regulations.

Waiver Void:

Any provision of any Purchase Agreement or separate agreement, whether oral or in
writing, by which a Purchaser purports to waive or indemnify any obligation of the Escrow
Agent holding any Deposit in trust is absolutely void. The provisions of the Attorney General’s
regulations and GBL §§ 352-e(2-b) and 352-h concerning escrow trust funds shall prevail over
any conflicting or inconsistent provisions in the Purchase Agreement, Plan or any amendment
thereto.

13. 14There have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances affecting
the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself.

RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor
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65 units Rivers Run HOA 11.7.11
2011 Budget - Approved
January 1, 2012 - December 31,2012

2012
2011 Propased
Acct Code Account Name Budget Budget
65 units 65 unlts
Income
4010 |Assessment Fees 156,000 163,800
4020 |Lale Fees
Sponsor Contribution
4070  [Cable/internet fess 27,850 27,850
Total Income 183,850 191,650
Administrative
5020 |Audit 2,750 1,200
5030 |Legal 500 500
5050  [Management Fee 12,480 12,480
5060 |{Insurance 24,8975 24,975
5070  |Office Expense 1,500 1,500
5085  INYS Franchise Tax 100 100
5100 |Real Estate Tax 3,300 3,300
Total Administrative 45,605 44,055
Utilities
5210 |Cable/internet 27,850 27,850
5220 |Electric 2,844 2,844
Total Utllities 30,694 30,694
Contracted Services )
5510  |Refuse 11,140 11,140
5520 |Snow Removal 43,934 41,747
5530 iLandscape Maintenance 26,880 24,880
5540  |Chemical Applications 7,340 7,340
5560  |Building Repairs 7,000 7,000
5570  |Painting 3,500 3500
Total Contracted Services 99,794 85,607
Total Operating Expenses 176,093 170,356
Reserve Contribution 21,294 21,294
Total Expenses 197,387 191,650
Net Income (13,537) -

EXHIBIT A
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2011
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’ Certilied Pubtic Accountants | 280 Ksnnath Drive, Suite 100 | Rachaster, New York 14623 | 585.427.8300 | EFFRotenberg.com

EFPLY

ROTENBERG:

what counts-

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

Board of Direclors
Rivers Run Homeowners' Assaciation
Rochesler, New Yark

We have raviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Rivers Run Homaowners' Association as of December 31,
2011, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes In fund balances, and cash flows for the year
then ended. A review Includes primaily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and making
inguiries of Company management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the
expression of an opinfon regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. ’

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant fo the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services Issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to perform
procedures to obtain limited assurance that there are na material modifications that should be made to the financial
statements. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our report.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any malerial modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial
statements in order for them to be In conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of
America.

Tha financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, were audited by us, and we expressed an unqualified
opinion on them in our report dated March 17,2011, We have not perormed any auditing procedures on the financial

statements since March 17, 2011.

E¥p :@Muﬁ,up

EFP Rotenberg, LLP
Rochester, New York
March 29, 2012

EXHIBIT B
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Revlewed) {Audited)
2011 2010
Reserve Reserva
Operating  Replacement Operating  Replacement
Eund Eund Total Fund Eund Total
ASSETS
Currant Assels
Cash and cash equivalents § 426 S 551775 S 56,201 $ 685 $ 38437 § 40,122
Accounts receivabla 1,858 - 1,958 1,449 - 1,449
Due from devaloper 1,086 - 1,086 - 9,080 9,060
Interfund recelvable - 4,180 4,190 - - -
Prepaid expenses 2,756 - 2,756 15,101 . 15,101
Total Assats S 8,226 $ 59,985 § 66,191 § 17,235 $ 48497 S 65,732
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Currant Liabilitles
Accounls payahle 5 1,310 5 . s 1,310 S§ 11,280 S - 5 11,280
Accrued expenses 100 . 100 100 - 100
Due {o developer - - - 240 - 240
Interfund payable 4,190 - 4,190 - - -
Deferred révenug 3282 - 3,282 2,188 - 2,188

Total current lizbilitles 8,882 - 8,882 13,806 - 13,606
Fund Balancas (2,656) 59,965 57,309 3,429 48,497 51,926
Total Liabliltles and Fund Balances S 6,226 S 69,965 5 66,191 $ 17,235 $ 48,497 5 65732

The accompanying notes are an integrai par of these finantial statemenls.

See Accountants' Repor
.9.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Balances

Forthe Years Endad December 31, 2011 and 204(

Revenues
Member assessments
Developers' conlributions
Cable lelevision assessment
Interast

Total revenues

Expensas
Cable lelevision
Landscaplng and snowplowing
Llability insurance
Management fees
Office
Professional feas
Real eslale laxes
Repalrs and malntenance
Trash service
Utilities

Total expenses

Excess of Revenues Over {Under} Expenses

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Endlng

(Reviswad} (Audlted)
2011 2010
Reserve Reserve
Operating  Replacement Operating  Replacement

Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
§ 59,822 § 10,442 S 70,264 $ 48,123 § 10,692 $ 56,815
34,701 2,645 37,346 40,151 11,088 51,240
15,208 . 15,208 10,718 - 10,718
3 78 81 68 29 97
109,734 13,165 122,899 97,058 21,810 118,868
15,351 - 15,351 12,509 - 12,509
57,024 - 57,024 47,447 - 47,447
13,327 - 13,327 10,759 - 10,759
5,504 - 5,504 4,944 - 4,944
1,090 - 1,090 724 - 724
3.302 - 3,302 3453 - 3,493
3,295 - 3,295 2,256 - 2,295
7,042 1,687 8,739 5,550 8,992 15,542
5,965 - 5,985 4,873 - 4.873
3,918 - 3,918 3,453 - 3,463
115,819 1.697 117,516 87,058 8,992 106,050
(6,085) 11,468 5,383 - 12,818 12,818
3,429 48,487 61,926 3,428 35679 38.108
$ (2,656} 5 59,985 $ 57,309 § 3429 5 48497 $ 51,825

The accompanying noles are an integral pad of these finandal stalemens,

See Accounlanls' Report
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Statements of Cash Flows
Forthe Years Ended Decembsr 31, 2011 and 2010

{Reviewed) (Audited)
2011 o010
Resarve Reserve
Operating  Replacament Operating  Replacement
Fund Fund Tota] Fund Fund Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of Revenues Over {Undar) Expenses  § (5,085) & 11,468 § 5383 § - 5 12,816 § 12,818
Changas In assels and liabilifies
Accounis receivable (508) - (508) (781) - {781)
Inlerfund (receivable) payahle 4,190 (4,180) - - - -
Due from developer (1,326) 9,060 7.734 13,200 (2,111) 11,089
Prepald expenses 12,345 - 12,345 {11,501) - (11,501)
Accounts payabls {8,970} - (8,870) (2,300) - {2,300}
Accrued expenses - - - (1.464) - {1.464)
Delerrad revanue 1,096 - 1,086 2,188 - 2,188
Nal cash flows fram operaling acilvitles (258} 16,338 156,079 {660) 10,707 10,047
Net Change In Cash and Cash Equivalents {258) 16,338 16,079 {660} 10,707 10,047
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beglnning 685 38,437 40,122 1,345 28,730 30,075
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending $ 426 S 55,775 S 56,201 5 685 $ 39,437 S 40,122

The accompanying noles are an Integral pan of these ﬁnancial‘s!a!ements,
’ See Accourtlants' Repart
- 4.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1.

Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles and Scope of Business

Scope of Business - The Rivers Run Homeowners' Associalion is a Homeowners' association organized as
a not-for-profit carporation for the purpose of maintaining and preserving common property of the Rivers Run
development. The Rivers Run Homeowners' Association condominium complex consists of 65 residential
units occupying a site of approximately 14 acres located at Fairwood Drive in the town of Hendetta, New

York. The complex is currently being developed.

Method of Accounting - The Association uses fund accounting, which requires that funds, such as
operating funds, deferred maintenance funds, and funds designated for fulure major repairs and
replacements, be classified separately for accounting and reporting purposes. Disbursements from the
operating fund are generally at the discretion of the board of directors and propery manager. Disbursements
from the replacement fund generally may be made only for designated purposes.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptlions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilites at the dale of the financial stalements
and the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ

from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the balance sheels and stalaments of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include deposits, cerlificates of deposit and all highly liquid debt instruments with original
maturities of three months or less, The Association maintains cash and cash equivalents at financial
institutions which periodically may excead federally insured limits.

Income Taxes - The Association elected to file ils tax return for 2009 as a corporation on Form 1120. As
such, the Assoclation must comply with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 277, which applies to
certain membership organizations. Under IRC Section 277, the Assoclation is required to separate .
membership income and expenses from non-membership Income and expenses. Each component is
taxed separately; however, net membership income is exempl from taxation if certain elections are
made. For the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Assoclalion had no taxable non-
membership income, Federal and state Income tax provisions of approximately $100 have been

recorded.

In accordance with ASC 740-10-50, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, the corporation
recognizes the tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax
posilion will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merils of the
position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial slatements from such positions are measured
based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelhood of being realized upon ultimate
selllement. Interest and/or penalties related to incorme tax malters, ¥ incurred, are recognized as a
component of income tax expense. The corporation's income tax fillngs are subject to audit by various
tax authorities. The corporation's open audit periods are 2009 through 2011.

Subsequent Events - In accordance with ASC 855-10, the comoration evaluated subsequent events
through March 28, 2012 the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

Due from Developer

As of December 31, 2011 and 1010, the Association was owed from Rivers Run, LLC, the developer.
$1,086 and $8,820, respectively. The receivable is an unsecured and non-interest bearing loan. The
amount represents the developer's responsibility to fund the excess expenditures that exceed
assessment income while the complex is being developed.

See Accountants’ Report
5.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3.

Note 4,

Owners’ Assessments

Monthly assessments to owners were $191 for January 1, 2011 through April 30, 2011 and $200 for
May 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011. Amounts of assessment designated for replacement fund
were $34 for January 1, 2011 through April 30, 2011 and $27 for May 1, 2011 through December 31,
2011. As of Decernber 31,2011 and 2010, 28 and 25 units, respectively, were occupied and 37 were
completed.

Future Major Repairs and Replacements

The Association's governing documents require that funds be accumulated for future major repairs and
replacements. Accumulated funds are held in separate savings accounts and generally are not available
for expenditures for normal operations,

The board of directors conducted g study in April 2006 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the
replacement costs of the components of common property. The estimales were obtained from licensed
architects and engineers. The unaudited table below is based onthe study for all 67 units.

Annual
ltem Cost Life Cycle Contribution
Roofing $ 185,875 30yrs 5 4,397
Asphalt (140,000sf) sealing ® .07/sf 9,800 3yrs 2,450
Resurface @ .75/sf 105,000 10 yrs 7,000
Concrete sidewalks (11,800s) @ 6/sf 70,800 20 yrs 2124
Total $ 381,475 5 15,971

As of December 31, 2011, the contribution was $15,971 of an annual contribution of $27,169. The board
is funding for major repairs and replacements over the remaining useful lives of the components based
on the study's estimates of current replacement costs and considering amounls previously accumulated

in the replacement fund.

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund based on estimates of future needs for repairs
and replacements of common property components. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimated
future expenditures, and the variations may be material. Therefore, amounts accumulated in the
replacement fund may not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. [f
addilional funds are needed, the Assaciation has the right, subjest to membership epproval, lo Increase
regular assessments, pass special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds are

available,

The following represents the change in reserve as of December 31, 2011 from December 31, 2010:

Reserve Balances

Beginning Change in Ending

ltem Reserve Reserve Reserve
Roofing 5 17,607 ¥ 3,158 $ 20,765
Asphalt (140,000sf) sealing @ .07/sf 5,830 1,758 7,589
Resurface @ .75/sf 18,741 5,026 23,767
Concrete sidewalles (11,800s7) @ 6/sf 6,319 1,525 7,844
Total 3 48497 3 11468 § 59,965

See Accountants' Report
-5-
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PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT

FOR
RIVERS RUN
TO: Rivers Run, LLC, 50 Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York, 14623, “Seller”
FROM: , “Buyer”
RE: Lot , New York
.New York
(Street Address)
OFFER TO PURCHASE

Buyer offers to purchase the property described below from Seller on the following
Terms:

1. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

A. Property known as Lot , in the Town of Henrietta, State of New York,
including all improvements and all rights which the Seller has in or appurtenant to the property.

B. Townhome Unit to be constructed according to the plans and specifications
designated Exhibit A attached hereto and initialed by Buyer and Seller.

C. HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION: Conveyance of the lot requires mandatory
membership in Rivers Run Homeowner’s Association, Inc. The Homeowners Association has
title to certain common areas designated on the foregoing subdivision map. Buyer understands
that an estimated monthly fee of § is currently required from members in the homeowners’
association for maintenance of the common areas and services to individual Jots including snow
plowing, trash collection and common area liability insurance, all as detailed in Rivers Run
Homeowner’s Association Offering Plan. Buyer understands that this monthly fee may change.

2, PRICE AMOUNT AND HOW IT WILL BE PAID. The purchase price is

(3 ). Buyer shall receive credit at closing for the deposit made pursuant to
paragraph 11 hereof. The balance of the purchase price shall be paid all in cash or certified check
at closing,

3. MORTGAGE CONTINGENCY. This Contract: check one only

() (@ is not subject to Buyer obtaining mortgage financing

¢ )y is subject to Buyer obtaining mortgage financing, satisfactory to Buyer in

the minimum amount of § no later than
»200__. In the event this contingency is not satisfied
or waived by said date, either party may terminate the Contract by
delivery of written notice to the other party, all deposits shall be returned
to Buyer and neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further liability
under the Contract. If a mortgage commitment is obtained by Buyer and

FAWORD\Rivers Run\Purchase and Sale Contract - Final.doc
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it lapses or terminates for some reason other than a delay in closing
caused by Buyer, and if Buyer has made a good faith effort to extend the
commitment without success, Buyer may terminate this contract within
five (5) business days following expiration of the commitment.

4, CLOSING DATE AND PLACE. The transfer of title to the property shall take place at
the office of Seller’s attomey or the office designated by Buyer’s lender on or about the

day of , 20__, provided, however, that if there is a delay in
completion of the improvements which is out of Seller’s control, then Seller shall be entitled to a
reasonable adjournment in the closing date without being liable therefore. The transfer of title
to the unit shall take place only after or concurrently with the issuance of a certificate of
occupancy for the unit being conveyed.

5. BUYER’S POSSESSION OF PROPERTY. Buyer shall have possession of the
property on the day of closing.

6. TITLE DOCUMENTS. Seller shall provide the following documents in
connection with the sale.

A. Deed: Seller will deliver to Buyer at closing a properly signed and
notarized Warranty Deed with lien covenant.

B. Abstract, Bankruptey and Tax Searches, and Instrument Survey
Map: Seller will furnish and pay for and deljver to Buyer or Buyer’s attorney at least 10
days prior to closing, fully guaranteed tax, title and United States Court searches, and an
instrument survey of the Lot with improvements, all to be dated or redated afier the date
of this contract. Seller will pay for continuing searches to and including the day of
‘closing and for the instrument survey. ' '

C. Documents to be Furnished regarding the Homeowners Association:
Since the property carries with it mandatory membership in the homeowners association,
Seller will also furnish the following items to Buyer or Buyer’s attorney at least ten (10)
days prior to closing:

a. Copy of the Offering Plan and all Amendments.

b. Name and address of insurance agent administering common areas
insurance policy.

7. MARKETABILITY OF TITLE. The deed and other documents delivered by
Seller shall be sufficient to convey good and marketable title in fee simple to the
property, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject to the terms of the
Declaration, By-Laws and Offering Plan. Buyer also agrees to accept title to the property
subject to public utility easements as long as those easements do not interfere with any
existing improvements. Buyer acknowledges that no improvements may be made to the
premises without prior written architectural approval from the Association Board of
Directors as set forth at length in the Declaration and By-Laws.
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8. OBJECTIONS TO TITLE. If Buyer raises a valid written objection to Seller’s
title which means that the title to the property is unmarketable, Seller may cancel this
contract by giving prompt written notice of cancellation to Buyer, and Buyer’s deposit
shall be returned immediately. However, if Seller gives written notice within five (5)
days that Seller will cure the problem prior to the closing date, then this contract shall
continue in force until the closing date, subject to Seller performing as promised. If
Seller fails to cure the problem within such time, Buyer will not be obligated to purchase
the property and his deposit shall be returned.

9. RECORDING COSTS, MORTGAGE TAX, TRANSFER TAX AND
CLOSING ADJUSTMENTS. Buyer will pay for recording the deed and any mortgage
and mortgage tax. Seller shall pay for any transfer tax. Water charges, sewer charges,
and current taxes computed on a fiscal year basis, excluding any delinquent items,
interest and penalties, will be prorated and adjusted between Seller and Buyer as of the
date of closing. Buyer shall also pay at closing his prorated share of the common
expenses assessment as provided for in Article VI of the Declaration and in the Offering
Plan of the Homeowners Association.

10. ZONING. By signing this contract, Seller certifies that the property is in full
compliance with all zoning or building ordinances for use as a single family residence.

11.  DEPOSIT BY BUYER. Upon acceptance, Buyer will deposit Ten Thousand
Dollars ($10,000.00) with Seller, which deposit is to become part of the purchase price.
The Seller will hold all funds received by it from purchasers directly, or through its
agents or employees in trust until closing. Fix Spindelman Brovitz and Goldman, PC,
attorneys at law, 295 Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200, Fairport, New York 14450, is Seller’s
escrow agent who will hold funds deposited by Buyer at any time prior to the closing of
title in a special escrow account in M&T Bank, 255 East Avenue, Rochester, N.Y. 14604.
These funds shall be held in trust in accordance with the provisions of
Section 352-(e)(2)(b) and 352-h of the General Business Law of the State of New York
and released only upon the authorization of Paula A. Lapin, Esq., Richard S. Brovitz,
Esq. or Jerry A. Goldman, Esq., attorneys at Fix Spindelman, Brovitz and Goldman, PC.
In the event closing does not occur for any reason except the Buyer’s default under the
terms of this Purchase Agreement, these funds shall be fully returned to Buyer. A
complete explanation of the escrow provisions and Buyer’s rights with respect to this
escrow is set forth in the Escrow Agreement ATTACHED TO THIS CONTRACT AS
EXHIBIT A. Buyer must sign the attached Escrow Agreement in order for this
Purchase Contract to be effective.

12. EXTRAS. If Buyer selects any extras or upgrades, they will be paid for as
follows: 50% upon selection, and 50% at closing.

13.  BUYER’S FAULT. Seller may send Buyer notice of intention to cancel this
Agreement if (i) Buyer does not pay Seller the balance of the purchase price on the date
that Buyer is supposed to pay or (ii) Buyer fails to perform any other obligation under
this Agreement. If Buyer does not correct the default within thirty (30) days after Seller
has given notice, Seller may cancel this Agreement.
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14, SELLER’S DEFAULT REMEDIES. If Seller cancels this Agreement because
of Buyer’s defaults, the liquidated damages shall be all payments Buyer has made to
Seller up to ten percent (10%) of the purchase price of the Townhome, plus the actual
costs Seller incurred for any extras Buyer may have ordered. If Buyer paid Seller less
than ten percent (10%) of the purchase price of the Townhome before the default, Seller
may collect, also as liquidated damages, the difference between the amount paid and ten
percent (10%) of the Purchase Price. If Seller cancels the Agreement because of Buyer’s
default, and recovers all its liquidated damages, neither party will have any further
liability to the other, Seller may then sell the Townhome to anyone else. The handling of
all deposits will be in accordance with the Escrow Agreement contained in the Offering
Plan.

15. BROKERAGE AND REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS. It is understood and
agreed by both Buyer and Seller that Seller has retained ReMax Realty (“ReMax”) as
selling broker and that Seller is liable for the real estate brokerage commission payable to
ReMax resulting from this contract.

16. SELLER’S WARRANTY. The Seller will provide the limited warranty and
construct all improvements in accordance with the Limited Warranty (“Warranty”) and
Residential Construction Performance Guidelines prepared by the Rochester
Homebuilder’s Association. A copy of the Warranty is contained in Part II of the
Offering Plan.

17. LIFE OF OFFER. Buyer agrees not to withdraw this Offer before
,20__at 5:00 P.M.,

18. RESPONSIBILITY OF PERSONS UNDER THIS CONTRACT;
ASSIGNABILITY. If more than one person signs this contract, as Buyer, each person
and any party who takes over that person’s legal position will be responsible for keeping
the promises made by Buyer in this contract. However, this contract i personal to the
parties and may not be assigned by either without the other’s consent.

19.  ENTIRE CONTRACT. This contract, when signed by both Buyer and Seller,
will be the record of the complete agreement between the Buyer and Seller concerning
the purchase and sale of the property. No verbal agreements or promises will be binding
on either the Buyer or Seller unless they are in writing, and signed by both Buyer and
Seller. In the event of any conflict between this Contract and the Offering Plan, the terms
of the Offering Plan shall control.

20. RECEIPT OF OFFERING PLAN. The Buyer acknowledges that he has
received a copy of the offering plan and all filed amendments at least three (3) business
days prior to the execution of the purchase contract.

21.  ATTORNEY APPROVAL. This Contract is subject to the written approval of
attorneys to Buyer and Seller within seven (7) calendar days from the date of Seller’s
acceptance,
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Dated: Buyer:

Witness:
Buyer:

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER BY SELLER

Seller certifies that it owns the property and has the power to sell the property.
Seller accepts the offer and agrees to sell on the terms and conditions set forth above.

Dated: Seller: RIVERS RUN, LLC
Manager
Witness:

Seller's Attorney & Address: Buyer's Attorney & Address:

Paula A. Lapin, Esq.

Fix Spindelman Brovitz and Goldman, P.C.
295 Woodcliff Drive, Suite 200

Fairport, New York 14450

Telephone: (585) 641-8000

E-mail: plapin@fixspin.com
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ESCROW AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this day of , 2013, between

RIVERS RUN, LLC , 50 Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York 14623, ("SPONSOR") as
sponsor of the offering plan, Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman, attorneys, 295 Woodcliff
Drive,  Fairport, New York 14450 ("ESCROW AGENT") as escrow agent and

of as purchase of unit ___ ( the “Purchaser™).

WHEREAS, RIVERS RUN, LLC is the sponsor of an offering plan to offer interests
in a homeowners association located at Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York, which
development is known as the Rivers Run Homeowners Association (“HOA™) ; and

WHEREAS, Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman , Attorneys, are authorized to act as
an escrow agent hereunder in accordance with General Business Law ("GBL") Section 352-
e(2-b) and the Attorney General's regulations promulgated thereunder; and

WHEREAS, Purchaser is buying a Unit in the HOA and is a necessary party to this
agreement; and

WHEREAS, SPONSOR desires that ESCROW AGENT act as escrow agent for
deposits and payments by purchasers and subscribers, pursuant to the terms of this agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions contained
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE ESCROW ACCOUNT.

1.1 SPONSOR AND ESCROW AGENT hereby establish an escrow account with
ESCROW AGENT for the purpose of holding deposits or payments made by purchasers or
subscribers. The escrow account has been opened with M&T bank at its branch located at,

255 East Avenue, Rochester New York. The account number is 9841505887,
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1.2 The name of the account is Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman, as Escrow
Agent for Rivers Run Homeowners Association.

1.3 Paula A. Lapin, Esq., Richard Brovitz, Esq., and Jerry Goldman, Esq. are the
sole signatories on the account.

1.4 The escrow account shall be a non-interest-bearing IOLA account as
disclosed in the offering plan. The account shall be an FDIC insured account. The insurance
coverage amount is unlimited. Sponsor shall not use more than one account or sub-account
for each deposit.

1.5 The escrow account is an IOLA established pursuant to Judiciary Law, §497.

1.6 Sponsor shall bear the administrative cost for maintenance of the escrow
account. No fees of any kind may be deducted from the account principal,

2. DEPOSITS INTO THE ESCROW ACCOUNT.

2.1 All funds received from prospective purchasers or subscribers prior to closing,
whether jn the form of checks, drafis, money orders, wire transfers, or other instruments
which identify the payor, shall be deposited in the escrow account. All instruments to be
deposited into the escrow account shall be made payable to, or endorsed by the purchaser or
subscriber to the order of Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman, as escrow agent for the Rivers
Run Homeowners Association offering plan. Any instrument payable or endorsed other than
as required hereby, and which cannot be deposited into such escrow account, shall be returned
to the prospective purchaser or subscriber promptly, but in no event more than five business
days following receipt of such instrument by ESCROW AGENT. In the event of such return
of funds, the instrument shall be deemed not to have been delivered to ESCROW AGENT

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

2.2 Within ten (10) business days after tender of the deposit submitted with the
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subscription or purchase agreement, ESCROW AGENT shall notify the purchaser of the
deposit of such funds in the bank indicated in the offering plan, provide the account number,
and disclose the initial interest rate. If the purchaser does not received notification of such
deposit within fifteen (15) business days after tender of the deposit, the purchaser may cancel
the purchase and rescind within ninety (90) days after tender of the deposit. Complaints
concerning the failure to honor such cancellation requests may be referred to the NYS
Department of Law, Real Estate Financing Bureau, 120 Broadway, 23™ floor, New York,
New York 10271. Rescission may not be afforded where proof satisfactory to the Attorney
General is submitted establishing that the escrowed funds were timely deposited in
accordance with these regulations and requisite notice was timely mailed to the subscriber or
purchaser.

3. RELEASE OF FUNDS.

3.1 ESCROW AGENT shall not release the escrowed funds of a defaulting purchaser
until aﬁerl consummation of the plan as defined in the Attorney General's regulations.
Consummation of the plan shall not reliéve SPONSOR of its fiduciary obligations pursuant
to GBL Section 352-h.

3.2 ESCROW AGENT shall release the funds in escrow if so directed in (a) a
subsequent writing signed by both Sponsor and Purchaser or (b) upon the closing of title to
the unit; (c) by a final non-appealable judgment or order of a court of competent jurisdiction
or (d) by a final, non-reviewable determination of the Attorney General pertaining to release
of escrowed funds, so long as the purchase agreement was signed on or before March 1,
2013. If the escrowed funds are not released pursuant to (a), (b) (c) or (d) above and the
Escrow Agent receives a request by either party to release the funds, the Escrow Agent must

give both parties written notice of at least thirty days before releasing the funds. If the
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Escrow Agent has not received notice of objection to the release of funds by the expiration of
the thirty day period, the funds shall be released and the Escrow Agent shall provide further
written notice to both parties informing them of said release. If the Escrow Agent receives a
written notice of objection from either party within the thirty day period, the Escrow Agent
shall continue to hold the funds until otherwise directed pursuant to (a), (b) (c) or (d) above.
However, the Escrow Agent shall also have the right at any time to deposit the funds
contained in the escrow account with a clerk of a court in the county in which the unit is
located and shall give written notice to both parties of such deposit.

3.3 SPONSOR shall not object to the release of the escrowed funds to (a) a Purchaser
who timely rescinds in accordance with an offer of rescission contained in the plan or an
amendment to the plan or (b) all Purchasers after an amendment abandoning the plan is
accepted for filing by the Department of Law.

4.  DISPUTES.

4.1 In the event of a dispute arising in cormegtion with a purchase agreement
providing for dispute resolution by the Attorney General that was signed on or before March
1, 2013, The Sponsor shall apply and the Purchaser or the Escrow Agent holding the down
payment in escrow may apply to the Attorney General for a determination on the disposition
of the down payment and any interest earned thereon. Forms for this purpose will be
available from the Department of Law. The party applying shall contemporaneously send to
all other parties a copy of the application.

4.2 Pending the determination of the Attorney General to grant or deny the
application the Sponsor, the Purchaser and the Escrow Agent shall abide by any interim
directive issued by the Attorney General.

4.3 If the application permitting the release of funds is granted, the deposit and any
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interest earned thereon shall be disposed of in accordance with a final, non-reviewable
determination of the Attorney General.

4.4 The Attorney General shall act upon the application within 30 days after its
submission to the Department of Law, by either making a determination or notifying the
parties that an extension of time in which to do so is necessary for stated reasons.

4.5 If the application seeking a release of funds is denied, the Escrow Agent shall
continue to hold the deposit and any interest earned thereon until:

(a) both the Sponsor and the Purchaser direct payment to a specified party in
accordance with a written direction signed by both of them; or

(b) a final, non-appealable order or judgment of a court is served on the Escrow
Agent; or

(c) the Escrow Agent deposits the disputed amount into court.

5. RECQRDKEEPING.

5.1 ESCROW AGENT shall maintain all records concerning the escrow account
for seven years after release of the funds.

5.2 Upon the dissolution of a law firm which was ESCROW AGENT, the former
partners or members of the firm shall make appropriate arrangements for the maintenance of
these records by one of the partners or members of the firm or by the successor firm and shall
notify the Department of Law of such transfer.

5.3 ESCROW AGENT shall make available to the Attorney General, upon his
request, all books and records of ESCROW AGENT relating to the funds deposited and
disbursed hereunder.

6. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF ESCROW AGENT
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6.1 ESCROW AGENT shall maintain the accounts called for in this Agreement
under the direct supervision and control of ESCROW AGENT.

6.2 A fiduciary relationship shall exist between ESCROW AGENT and
Purchasers, and ESCROW AGENT acknowledges its fiduciary obligations.

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SPONSOR

7.1 SPONSOR agrees that SPONSOR and its agents, including any selling agents,
shall immediately deliver all deposits and payments received by them prior to closing of an
individual transaction to ESCROW AGENT.

72 SPONSOR agrees that it shall not interfere with ESCROW AGENT'S
performance of its fiduciary duties and compliance with the Attorney General's regulations.

7.3 Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Escrow Agent against all losses or damages
incurred by the Escrow Agent in the performance of its duties under the Escrow Agreement,
except for those caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Escrow Agent,

8. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

8.1 This Agreement shall remain in effect unless and until it is cancelled, by

either:

(a) Written notice given by SPONSOR to ESCROW AGENT of cancellation
of designation of ESCROW AGENT to act in said capacity, which cancellation shall take
effect only upon the filing of an amendment with the Department of Law providing for a
successor ESCROW AGENT; or

(b) The resignation of ESCROW AGENT upon giving notice to SPONSOR
of its desire to so resign, which resignation shall take effect only upon the filing of an
amendment with the Department of Law providing for a successor ESCROW AGENT; or

(c) All units offered pursuant to the plan have been sold and all sales
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transactions have been consummated.

8.2 Upon termination of the duties of ESCROW AGENT as described in paragraph
8.1 above, ESCROW AGENT shall deliver any and all funds held by it in escrow and any and
all contracts or documents maintained by ESCROW AGENT to the new escrow agent.

9. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

9.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon SPONSOR, Purchaser and ESCROW

AGENT and their successors and assigns.
10. GOVERNING LAW.

10.1 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the
laws of the State of New York.

11. ESCROW AGENT'S COMPENSATION.

11.1 SPONSOR agrees that ESCROW AGENT'S compensation shall not be paid from
escrowed principal nor from any interest accruing thereon and that compensation to ESCROW
AGENT, if any, shall not be deducted from escrowed funds by any financial institution under
any circumstance.

12. SEVERABILITY,

12.1 If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement or the application of such provision to other persons or to other circumstances shall
not be affected thereby and shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by
law.

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.
13.1 This Agreement, read together with GBL Section 352-e(2b) and the Attorney

General's regulations, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
g g P p
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subject matter hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as to the

day and year first written above.

PURCHASER

ESCROW AGENT
Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman

BY:

Paula A. Lapin, Esq.

SPONSOR

RIVERS RUN, LLC

BY:

Patrick Tobin, Manager
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STONY POINT HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION DECLARATION OF
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS (DCCR) AMENDMENT TO
CHANGE THE REQUIREMENTS FOR AMENDING THE DCCR

ARTICLE XV, GENERAL PROVISIONS Section 1 Duration, Renewal and
Amendment of Declaration of the Stony Point DECLARATION OF COVENANTS,
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS currently includes the following:

“Except as above provided, the Declaration may be amended

by an instrument signed by Members holding not less than

sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes of the Class A membership
(owners)...”

The above wording is hereby amended and restated:
“Except as above provided, the Declaration may be amended
by an instrument signed by Members holding not less than
sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes cast of the Class A
membership (owners) however, no amendment shall be ratified unless
a minimum of 117 members of the Class A membership (owners) cast a
vote.”

I/we vote YES to amend and restate the DCCR as shown above
I/we vote NO to amend and restate the DCCR as shown above

Only one member required per household.

Member Signature Date

Print Member(s) Name

Print Member(s) street address

Your Board would appreciate the ballot returned within two weeks. Please return
your ballot to:

Stony Point Homeowners Association
c/o Crofton Associates, Inc.
111 Marsh Road, Suite 1
Pittsford, New York 14534



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
AMENDMENT NO. 10

This is the Tenth Amendment to the Offering Plan for the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. The primary purpose of the amendment is to extend the offering.

1. Twenty-one (21) lots remain unsold.

2. Sponsor transferred control of the Board to the homeowners in September of
2011,
3. The Sponsor is paying Association expenses for the two (2) Units they own which

are receiving services. The total amount being paid by Sponsor is $520.00 per month.

4. The Sponsor has paid the most recent real property taxes and School taxes for the
current year in the amount of $19,833.00. Bills have been rendered for individual units.

5. There are no homes occupied by tenants.

6. Sponsor’s obligations to the homeowner’s association which will become due in
the next twelve (12) months are pavment of Association expenses for its Lots and payments for

completion of improvements.

7. All unsold units subject to the Offering Plan are subject to a line of credit with
M&T on which there is a current balance of $1.002.682.00. It is a demand note, with monthly
payments of interest only. The interest rate is 2.25% over the LIBOR rate.

8. Sponsor’s obligations will be funded from projected sales and if necessary, from
other assets of Sponsor.

9. The Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the Homeowners
Association and under the M&T mortgage and has been in the 12 months preceding this
amendment.

10. Patrick Tobin and David Christa, principals of Sponsor, were also principals in
the Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170. 130 East Avenue, Rochester, New York and
the Plains at Parish Homestead HOA (H07-0014), Oneonta, New York. Both of these projects
are now sold out. The offering plans for these projects are available for inspection at the office
of the Sponsor and at the office the New York State Depariment of Law, 120 Broadway, 23rd
Floor, New York, New York 10271.

11. A 2013 budget is attached as Exhibit A. Financial statements for 2012 are
attached as Exhibit B.



12, The former escrow agent, Fix Spindelman Brovitz & Goldman has merged inlo
Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP. The new Escrow Agreement and Purchase Contract are attached as
Exhibits C and D, respectively.

13. Therc have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances affecting
the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself.

RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor



37 units

Aivers Run HOA

2013 Budgst -
January 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013
2012 VTD
Approved | Acluals 2013
2012 August | Proposed
Acct Code Account Name Budget 2012 Budget
37 units 37 unlts 40 unlte
ncome
4010  jAssessmant Foes 63,240 61,208 124,000
4020 |Late Fees .
Spaonsor Contribution 4,014
4070  |Cable/intemmet laes 12,000 10,873 21,600
Interast - 8
Total Income 105,240 76,204 146,400
Adminlstrative
5020 |Audit 1,200 5500 2,000
5030 |Legal 500 1,615 1,500
5050 iManagemen! Fee 5,376 4,272 7,200
5060 [Insurance 13,500 7,089 15,000
5070  [Oidlice Expenss 7001 g70 700
5095 JNYS Franchise Tax 100! 0 100
5100 |Real Estale Tax 3,300 2,259 3,300
5120 [Hospitality Commitiee - 751 1,300
Total Adminlstrative 24,676 22 456 31,100
Utliities - :
5210 |Cable/intemel 12,000 12,707 24,000
5220 |Eleclric 2,844 2,685 4,000
Total Utilities 14,844 15,392 28,000
Contracted Services
5510 IRsfuse 4,8001 4,776 7,000
5520 [Snow Removal 25,434 15,260 25,434
5530 jlLandscape Malntenance 16,800 15,123 29,000
5540  [Chemical Applications 3,400 2,980 3,400
5560  |Building Repairs 3.004G 2,988 3,000
5570  {Painling 1,500 0 1,500]
Total Contracted Services 54,934 41,136 69,334
Total Operating Expenses 94,464 78,984 128,434
Reserve Contribulion 9,173 5,350 12,960
Total Expenses 103,627 84,334 141,394
Net Incoame 1,613 (8,130) 5,006
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Budgel Noles Rivers Run HOA 91413

4010

4020

4070

4100

5020

5030

5050

5060

5070

5085

5220

5530

5540

5560

5570

2013 Budgel - Dratt
January 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013

2013 Operating Budgat Notas

ASSESSMENT- Is $260 per month per uni!

LATE FEES -~ Not budgeted

INTERNET/CABLE FEES - charged lo homeowner
INTEREST INCOME — Not budgsled

AUDIT - 52,000 has been aliocated for the annual sudit of the linancia! slatements

LEGAL ~ $1,500 has been allocated lor miscalianeous legal lees incurred in enlorcing
Condominium Rules and Regulalions,

MANAGEMENT FEE - §7,200

INSURANCE - Coveraga by Cinclnnali through First Niagara Risk Managemen! This policy provides
properly and llability insurance for all common sreas, Directors & Officers Liahility and & %2,000,000 Umbrella

OFFICE EXPENSES — Ihis budgeted figure includes $700 to caver axpanditures including postage.
duplication cosls for slalements, bosrd correspondsnce, coupoi boaks, and noticas to homeowners

N.Y.5. FRANCHISE TAX ~ The Assoclaton, as a no! {ar profit corporalion {s subjecl to
New York State Iranchise tax ol $100

REAL ESTATE TAXES - £3,300
HOSPITALITY COMMITTEE - Projecid expansa 1,300

TELEPHONE/INTERNET/CABLE - Bulk priced package through Time Watner Cable w/ roadrunner intetnel
with annual increases

ELECTRIC - Service to operats all comman area lighting. Based on historical dala, eleciiical service is projecied lo ba
§4,000.

REFUSE - Cost lor weekly refuse and recyciing pick-up with Waste Managemaent

SNOW REMOVAL — Per season contrac! lor plowing roadways, didveways and parking area s
conlracted Bl $25,434. GL Romig.

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE — Per season contracl inciudad mowing, imming, mechanical edging,
core aerilication. bed mainlenance, complate muiching of the prapeniy, spring snd lall clean-up is estimated at 528,000

CHEMICAL APPLICATIONS ~ Per season contracl with Broccolo Including lour lawn and trea/shrub applications is
estimaled al §3,400

BUILDING REPAIRS — 53,000 allocated for general exterior electrical, plumbing, roel, slding, gulter,
sidewalk repairs, and gutter cléaning.

PAINTING - §1,500 ailocaled lor general exterior touch-up painling
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and the Homeowners
Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc.
as of December 31, 2012, and the related staternents of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
balances and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial slatements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors®
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ervor, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects
the financial position of Rivers Run Homeawners Association, Inc. at December 31, 2012, anc
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

%:);@\37‘ canobs *\g‘/ cere

Rochester, New York
February 11, 2013



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2012

ASSETS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 46,615
Accounts receivable from homeowners 1,781
Other receivables 616
Prepaid expenses 4,516

Total assets 3 53,528

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable : ‘ 5. 9,751
Accounts payable to sponsor 74
Advance payments from homeowners 2,403
Total liabilities 12,228
Fund balances
Operating (25,086)
Major maintenance 66,386
Total fund balances 41,300

&5

33,528

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC,

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Revenues
Common charges §
Cable assessiments
Interest income

Total revenues

Expenses
Administrative expense
Landscaping
Repairs and maintenance
Cable
Utilities
Insurance
Legal and professional fees .
Management fee
Refuse removal
Snow removal
Property taxes
Income taxes

Total expenses
Excess of revenues over (under) expenses

Transfers

Fund balances - beginning of year

155

Fund balances - end of year

Major
Operating Mainfenance
Fund Fund Total

87,399 § 9,173 § 96,572
17,016 0 17,016
11 49 60
104,426 9,222 113,648
2,890 0 2,850
31,125 0 31,125
5,796 2,801 8,597
20,170 0 20,170
4,123 0 4,123
12,000 0 12,000
10,426 0 10,426
5,744 0 5,744
7,668 0 7,668
23,594 0 23,594
3,246 0 3,246
74 0 74
126,856 2.801 129,657
(22,430) 6,421 (16,009)
0 0 0
(2,656) 59,965 57,309
(25,086) g 66,386 g 41,300

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATI ON, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1,2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of revenues under expenses
Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues under
expenses to net cash and cash equivalents used
by operating activities:
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable from homeowners
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to sponsor
Advance paymenls from homeowners

Net cash and cash equivalents used by operating activities
Cash and cash eguivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for income taxes

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.

4
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(16,009)

177
470
(1,760)
8,441
(26)
(879)

(9,586}




RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

The Association was incorporated under Section 402 of the New York State Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law on November 16, 2005, for the purpose of maintaining the common areas
(consisting of exteriors, asphalt, lawns and grounds) of sixty-two units, of which forty are sold,
located in Henrietta, New York. The homeowners elect a board of directors who hire an
independent property management firm Lo manage the Association.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Association considers all highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fund Accounting - The Association uses fund accounting, which requires that funds, such as
operating funds and funds designated for future major repairs and replacements, be classified
separately for accounting and reporting purposes. Disbursements from the operating fund are
generally at the discretion of the board of directors and property manager. Disbursements from
the major maintenance fund generally may be made only for designated purposes.

Income Taxes - Pursuant to the Tax Reform Act of 1976, homeowner associations are permitted
to make an annual election to be trealed as a regular corporalion or a lax exempt organization.
Each year the Association will file its tax returns under the election which is most beneficial to
the organization. Under Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code, taxes are paid on non-exempt
function income (principally interest, net of expenses). ‘

The Association's tax returns for the years ending 2009, 2010 and 2011 are subject 1o
examination by the IRS, generally for three years aflter they were filed.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that effect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporred
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from

those cstimates.

Subsequent Events - In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated events
and transactions for potential recognition and disclosure through February 11, 2013, the date the

financial statements were available to be issued.

See independent auditors’ report.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTE 3: OWNERS’ ASSESSMENTS

Monthly assessments to owners for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $210, of which a
portion is allocated to the major maintenance fund, The annual budget and assessments of
owners are determined by the board of directors. The Association retains any year end operating
surplus to be used in future years. As of January 1, 2013, monthly assessments increased to
$260. There is also an additional charge to homeowners who want cable television and inlernet.

The Association's policy is to retain legal counsel and place liens on the properties of
homeowners whose assessments are significantly in arrears. It is the opinion of management thal
the Association will ultimately prevail against the homeowners whose assessments are delinquent
and, accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been established.

NOTE 4: COMMITMENTS

The Association has entered into an agreement with Crofton Corporation for management of its
operations. The agreement provides for a monthly fee of $15 per completed unit until December

31, 2013.
NOTE 5: FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

The Association has elected to accumulate funds for future major repairs and replacements.
Accumulated funds are accounted for separately and generally are not available for expenditures

for normal operations.

The board of directors and management company determine amounts to be allocated to the major
maintenance fund. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimated future expenditures, and the
variations may be materia). Therefore, amounts accumnulated in the major maintenance fund may
not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If additional funds
are needed, the Association has the right to increase regular assessments, pass special
assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds are avaiiable.

NOTE 6: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Association’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents. The Association places ils cash investments with high
credit quality institutions. At times such investments may be in excess of the FDIC insurance
limit. The Association routinely assesses the financial strength of these organizations and, as a

consequence, believes that its credit risk exposure is limifed,

See independent auditors’ report,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors and the Homeowners
Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc. as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2012, and our report thereon dated February 11, 2013, which
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears on page 1. Our audn
was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial slatements as a whole. The
information on future major repairs and replacements, which is the responsibility of the
Association's management, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information has not been subjected (o the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on il.

@u,%m& < @, Acuo

Rochester New York
February 11, 2013



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIA TION, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE
MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

The offering plan contains a study to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement
costs of components of common property.  The costs are based upon estimated current
replacement costs.

The following unaudited table is based on the study and presents significant information about
the components of common property.

Estimated Estimated
Remaining Useful Current
Components Lives (Years) Replacement Costs
Asphalt sealing 3 3 9,800
Asphalt resurface 10 105,000
Roofs 30 175,875
Painting 5 20,000
Sidewalks 20 70,800

See independent auditors’ report on supplemental information.
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PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT

FOR
RIVERS RUN
TO: Rivers Run, LLC, 50 Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York, 14623, “Seller”
FROM: . “Buyer”
RE: Lot ___, . New York
. New York

(Street Address)
OFFER TO PURCHASE

Buyer offers to purchase the property described below from Seller on the following
Terms:

1. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

A. Property known as Lot . in the Town of Henrietia, State of New York,
including all improvements and all rights which the Seller has in or appurtenant to the property.

B. Townhome Unit to be constructed according to the plans and specifications
designated Exhibit A attached hereto and initialed by Buyer and Seller.

C. HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION: Conveyance of the lot requires mandatory
membership in Rivers Run Homeowner’s Association, Inc. The Homeowners Association has
title to certain common areas designated on the foregoing subdivision map. Buyer understands
that an estimated monthly fee of § is currently required from members in the homeowners’
association for maintenance of the common areas and services to individual lots including snow
plowing, trash collection and common area liability insurance, all as detailed in Rivers Run
Homeowner's Association Offering Plan. Buyer understands that this monthly fee may change.

2. PRICE AMOUNT AND HOW IT WILL BE PAID. The purchase price is

(% ). Buyer shall receive credit at closing for the deposit made pursuant to
paragraph |1 hereof. The balance of the purchase price shall be paid all in cash or certified check

at closing.

3. MORTGAGE CONTINGENCY. This Contract; check one only
¢ ) (@ is not subject to Buyer obtaining mortgage financing
) (b is subject to Buyer obtaining mortgage financing, satisfactory to Buyer in

the minimum amount of § no later than
, 200__. In the event this contingency is not satisfied

or waived by said date, either party may terminate the Contract by
delivery of written notice to the other party, all deposits shall be returned
to Buyer and neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further liability
under the Contract. If a mortgage commitment is obtained by Buyer and

(1851874 §
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it lapses or terminates for some reason other than a delay in closing
caused by Buyer, and if Buyer has made a good faith effort to extend the
commitment without success, Buyer may terminate this contract within
five (5) business days following expiration of the commitment.

4. CLOSING DATE AND PLACE. The transfer of itle to the property shall take place at
the office of Seller’s attorney or the office designated by Buyer's lender on or about the

day of, . 20_, provided, however, that if there is a delay in
completion of the improvements which is out of Seller’s control, then Seller shall be entitled 10 a
reasonable adjournment in the closing date without being liable therefore. The transfer of title
1o the unit shall take place only after or concurrently with the issuance of a certificate of

occupancy for the unit being conveyed.

5 BUYER'S POSSESSION OF PROPERTY. Buyer shall have possession of the
property on the day of closing.

6. TITLE DOCUMENTS. Scller shall provide the following documents in
connection with the sale,

A Deed: Seller will deliver to Buyer at closing a properly signed and
notarized Warranty Deed with lien covenant.

B. Abstract, Bankruptey and Tax Searches, and Instrument Survey
Map: Seller will furnish and pay for and deliver to Buyer or Buyer’s attorney at least 10
days prior to closing, fully guaranteed tax, title and United States Court searches, and an
instrument survey of the Lot with improvements, al] to be dated or redated afier the date
of this contract. Seller will pay for continuing searches to and including the day of
closing and for the instrument survey.

C.  Documents to be Furnished regarding the Homeowners Association: |
Since the property carries with it mandatory membership in the homeowners association,
Seller will also furnish the following items to Buyer or Buyer’s attorney at least ten (10)

days prior to closing:
a. Copy of the Offering Plan and all Amendments.

b. Name and address of insurance agent administering common areas
insurance policy.

7. MARKETABILITY OF TITLE. The deed and other documents delivered by
Seller shall be sufficient to convey good and marketable title in fee simple to the
property, tree and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject 1o the terms of the
Declaration, By-Laws and Offering Plan. Buyer also agrees to accept title to the property
subject to public utility easements as long as those easements do not interfere with any
existing improvements. Buyer acknowledges that no improvements may be made to the
premises without prior written architectural approval from the Association Board of
Directors as set forth ai length in the Declaration and By-Laws.

(1851874 )



8. OBJECTIONS TO TITLE. If Buyer raises a valid written objection to Seller’s
title which means that the title to the property is unmarketable, Seller may cancel this
contract by giving prompt written notice of cancellation to Buyer, and Buyer’s deposit
shall be retumed immediately. However, if Seller gives written notice within five (5)
days that Seller will cure the problem prior to the closing date, then this contract shall
continue in force until the closing date, subject to Seller performing as promised. If
Seller fails to cure the problem within such time, Buyer will not be obligated to purchase
the property and his deposit shall be returned.

9. RECORDING COSTS, MORTGAGE TAX, TRANSFER TAX AND
CLOSING ADJUSTMENTS. Buyer will pay for recording the deed and any mortgage
and mortgage tax. Seller shall pay for any transfer tax. Water charges, sewer charges,
and current taxes computed on a fiscal year basis, excluding any delinquent items,
interest and penalties, will be prorated and adjusted between Seller and Buyer as of the
date of closing. Buyer shall also pay at closing his prorated share of the common
expenses assessment as provided for in Article VI of the Declaration and in the Offering

Plan of the Homeowners Association.

10. ZONING. By signing this contract, Seller certifies that the property is in full
compliance with all zoning or building ordinances for use as a single family residence.

11. DEPOSIT BY BUYER. Upon acceptance, Buyer will deposit Ten Thousand
Dollars ($10,000.00) with Seller, which deposit is to become part of the purchase price.
The Seller will hold all funds received by it from purchasers directly, or through its
agents or employees in trust unti! closing. Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP attorneys at law, 2
State Street, Rochester, New York 14614, is Seller’s escrow agent who will hold funds
deposited by Buyer at any time prior to the closing of title in a special escrow account in
M&T Bank, 255 East Avenue, Rochester, N.Y. 14604. These funds shall be held in trust
in accordance with the provisions of Section 352-(e)(2)(b) and 352-h of the General
Business Law of the State of New York and released only upon the authorization of Paula
A. Lapin, Esq., Richard S. Brovitz, Esq. or Jerry A. Goldman, Esq., attorneys at Woods
Oviatt Gilman LLP. In the event closing does not occur for any reason except the
Buyer's default under the terms of this Purchase Agreement, these funds shall be fully
returned to Buyer. A complete explanation of the escrow provisions and Buyer’s rights
with respect to this escrow is set forth in the Escrow Agreement ATTACHED TO THIS
CONTRACT AS EXHIBIT A. Buyer must sign the attached Escrow Agreement in
order for this Purchase Contract to be effective.

12. EXTRAS. If Buyer selects any extras or upgrades, they will be paid for as
follows: 50% upon selection, and 50% at closing.

13. BUYER’S FAULT. Seller may send Buyer notice of intention to cancel this
Agreement il (i) Buyer does not pay Seller the balance of the purchase price on the date
that Buyer is supposed to pay or (ii) Buyer fails to perform any other obligation under
this Agreement. If Buyer does not correct the default within thirty (30) days after Seller
has given notice, Seller may cancel this Agreement.

{1851874 )



I4. SELLER’S DEFAULT REMEDIES. If Seller cancels this Agreement because
of Buyer’s defaults, the liquidated damages shall be all payments Buyer has made to
Seller up to ten percent (10%) of the purchase price of the Townhome, plus the actual
costs Seller incurred for any extras Buyer may have ordered. If Buyer paid Seller less
than ten percent (10%) of the purchase price of the Townhome before the default, Seller
may collect, also as liquidated damages, the difference between the amount paid and ten
percent (10%) of the Purchase Price. If Seller cancels the Agreement because of Buyer's
default, and recovers all its liquidated damages, neither party will have any further
liability to the other. Seller may then sell the Townhome 1o anyone else. The handling of
all deposits will be in accordance with the Escrow Agreement contained in the Offering

Plan.

15. BROKERAGE AND REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS. It is understood and
agreed by both Buyer and Seller that Seller has retained ReMax Realty (“ReMax™) as
selling broker and that Seller is liable for the real estate brokerage commission payable to

ReMax resulting from this contract.

16. SELLER’S WARRANTY. The Seller will provide the limited warranty and
construct all improvements in accordance with the Limited Warranty (“Warrany”") and
Residential Construction Performance Guidelines prepared by the Rochester
Homebuilder’s Association. A copy of the Warranty is contained in Part 1l of the

Offering Plan.

17. LIFE OF OFFER. Buyer agrees not to withdraw this Offer before
.20 at 5:00 P.M.

18. RESPONSIBILITY OF PERSONS UNDER THIS CONTRACT;
ASSIGNABILITY. If more than one person signs this contract, as Buyer, each person
and any party who takes over that person’s legal position will be responsible for keeping
the promises made by Buyer in this contract. However, this contract is personal to the
parties and may not be assigned by either without the other's consent.

19. ENTIRE CONTRACT. This contract, when signed by both Buyer and Seller,
will be the record of the complete agreement between the Buyer and Seller concerning
the purchase and sale of the property. No verbal agreements or promises will be binding
on either the Buyer or Seller unless they are in writing, and signed by both Buyer and
Seller. In the event of any conflict between this Contract and the Offering Plan, the terms

of the Offering Plan shall control.

20. RECEIPT OF OFFERING PLAN. The Buyer acknowledges that he has
received a copy of the offering plan and all filed amendments at least three (3) business

days prior 1o the execution of the purchase contract.

21. ATTORNEY APPROVAL. This Contract is subject to the written approval of
attorneys to Buyer and Seller within seven (7) calendar davs from the date of Seller’s

acceptance.

(1851874}



Dated: Buyer:

Witness:
Buyer:

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER BY SELLER

Seller certifies that it owns the property and has the power 10 sell the property
Seller accepts the offer and agrees to sell on the terms and conditions set forth above.

Dated: Seller: RIVERS RUN, LLC
Manager
Witness:
Seller's Attorney & Address: Buyer's Attorney & Address:

Paula A. Lapin, Esq.

Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP

2 State Street

Rochester, New York 14614
Telephone: (585) 987-2800

E-mail: plapin@woodsoviatt.com

(1831874 )



ESCROW AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT made this day of . 2013, between

RIVERS RUN, LLC, 50 Fairwood Drive, Rochester, New York 14623, ("SPONSOR") as

sponsor of the offering plan, Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP, attorneys. 2 State Street, Rochester,

New York 14614 ("ESCROW AGENT") as escrow agent and of
as purchase of unit ___ ( the “Purchaser”).

WHEREAS, RIVERS RUN, LLC is the sponsor of an offering plan to offer interests
in a homeowners association lovated al Fainwood Drive, Rochester, New York, which
development is known as the Rivers Run Homeowners Association ("HOA™); and

WHEREAS, Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP, Altorneys, are authorized to act as an
escrow agent hereunder in accordance with General Business Law ("GBL") Section 352-e(2-
b) and the Attorney General's regulations promulgated thereunder; and

WHEREAS, Purchaser is buying a Unit in the HOA and is a necessary party 1o this
agreement; and

WHEREAS, SPONSOR desires that ESCROW AGENT act as escrow agent for
deposits and payments by purchasers and subscribers, pursuant to the terms of this agreement,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions contained
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE ESCROW ACCOUNT.

1.1 SPONSOR AND ESCROW AGENT hereby establish an escrow account with
ESCROW AGENT for the purpose of holding deposits or payments made by purchasers or
subscribers. The escrow account has been opened with M&T bank at its branch located at,

255 East Avenue, Rochester New York. The account number is 98613531482,

(1847544 A EXHIBIT D



1.2 The name of the account is Woods Oviau Gilman LLP. as Escrow Agent for
Rivers Run Homeowners Association.

1.3 Paula A. Lapin, Esq.. Richard Brovitz, Esq., and Jerry Goldman. Esq. are the
sole signatories on the account.

1.4 The escrow account shall be a non-interest-bearing IOLA account as
disclosed in the offering plan. The account shall be an FDIC insured account. The insurance
coverage amount is unlimited. Sponsor shall not use more than one account or sub-account
for each depaosit.

1.5 The escrow account is an IOLA established pursuant to Judiciary Law, §497.

1.6 Sponsor shall bear the administrative cost for maintenance of the escrow
account. No fees of any kind may be deducted from the account principal.

2. DEPOSITS INTO THE ESCROW ACCOUNT.

2.1 All funds received from prospective purchasers or subscribers prior to closing,
whether in the form of checks, drafis, money orders, wire transfers, or other instruments
which identify the payor, shall be deposited in the escrow account. All instruments to be
deposited into the escrow account shall be made payable to, or endorsed by the purchaser or
subscriber to the order of Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP, as escrow agent for the Rivers Run
Homeowners Association offering plan. Any instrument payable or endorsed other than as
required hereby, and which cannot be deposited into such escrow account, shall be returned to
the prospective purchaser or subscriber promptly, but in no event more than five business
days following receipt of such instrument by ESCROW AGENT. In the event of such return
of funds, the instrument shall be deemed not to have been delivered to ESCROW AGENT

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

2.2 Within ten (10) business days after tender of the deposit submitted with the

(1847524 \EXHIBIT D



subscription or purchase agreement. ESCROW AGENT shall notify the purchaser of the
deposit of such funds in the bank indicated in the offering plan, provide the account number,
and disclose the initial interest rate. If the purchaser does not received notification of such
deposit within fifteen (15) business days after tender of the deposit, the purchaser may cancel
the purchase and rescind within ninety (90) days after tender of the deposit. Complaints
concerning the failure to honor such cancellation requests may be referred to the NYS
Department of Law, Real Estate Financing Bureau, 120 Broadway, 23" floor, New York,
New York 10271. Rescission may not be afforded where proof satisfactory 1o the Attomey
General is submitted establishing that the escrowed funds were timely deposited in
accordance with these regulations and requisite notice was timely mailed to the subscriber or
purchaser.

3. RELEASE OF FUNDS.

3.1 ESCROW AGENT shall not release the escrowed funds ol a defaulting purchaser
until afier consummation of the plan as defined in the Attorney General's regulations.
Consummation of the plan shall not relieve SPONSOR of its fiduciary obligations pursuant
to GBL Section 352-h.

3.2 ESCROW AGENT shall release the funds in escrow if so directed in (a) a
subsequent writing signed by both Sponsor and Purchaser or (b) upon the closing of title to
the unit; (c) by a final non-appealable judgment or order of a court of competent jurisdiction
or (d) by a final, non-reviewable determination of the Attorney General pertaining to release
of escrowed funds, so long‘as the purchase agreement was signed on or before March 1.
2013. If the escrowed funds are not released pursuant to (a), (b) (c) or (d) above and the
Escrow Agent receives a request by either party 1o release the funds, the Escrow Agent must

give both parties written notice of at least thirty days before releasing the funds. If the
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Escrow Agent has nol received notice of objection 1o the release of funds by the expiration of
the thirty day period, the funds shall be released and the Escrow Agent shall provide further
writlen notice to both parties informing them of said release. If the Escrow Agenl receives a
written notice of objection from either party within the thinty day period, the Escrow Agent
shall continue to hold the funds until otherwise directed pursuant to (a), (b) (c) or (d) above,
However, the Escrow Agent shall also have the right at any time to deposit the funds
contained in the escrow account with a clerk of a courl in the county in which the unit is
located and shall give written notice to both parties of such deposit.

3.3 SPONSOR shall not object to the release of the escrowed funds (o (a) a Purchaser
who timely rescinds in accordance with an offer of rescission contained in the plan or an
amendment to the plan or (b) all Purchasers afier an amendment abandoning the plan is
accepted for filing by the Department of Law.

4. DISPUTES.

4.1 In the event of a dispule arising in connection with a purchase agreement
providing for dispute resolution by the Attomney General that was signed on or before March
I, 2013, The Sponsor shall apply and the Purchaser or the Escrow Agent holding the down
payment in escrow may apply to the Attorney General for a determination on the disposition
of the down payment and any interest earned thereon. Forms for this purpose will be
available from the Department of Law. The party applying shall contemporaneously send to

all other parties a copy of the application.

4.2 Pending the determination of the Attorney General to grant or deny the
application the Sponsor, the Purchaser and the Escrow Agent shall abide by any interim

directive issued by the Altorney General.

4.3 1f the application permitting the release of funds is granted, the deposit and any
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interest earned thereon shall be disposed of in accordance with a final, non-reviewable
determination of the Attorney General.

4.4 The Attorney General shall act upon the application within 30 days after its
submission to the Department of Law, by either making a determination or notifying the
parties that an extension of time in which to do so is necessary for stated reasons.

4.5 1f the application seeking a release of funds is denied, the Escrow Agent shall
continue to hold the deposit and any interest eamed thereon until:

(a) both the Sponsor and the Purchaser direct payment to a specified party in
accordance with a written direction signed by both of them: or

(b) a final, non-appealable order or Judgment of a court is served on the Escrow
Agent; or

(c) the Escrow Agent deposits the disputed amount into court.

5. RECORDKEEPING.

5.1 ESCROW AGENT shall maintain all records concerning thé escrow account
for seven years afier release of the funds,

5.2 Upon the dissolution of a law firm which was ESCROW AGENT, the former
partners or members of the firm shall make appropriate arrangements for the maintenance of
these records by one of the partners or members of the firm or by the successor firm and shall
natify the Department of Law of such transfer.

53 ESCROW AGENT shall make available 1o the Attorney General, upon his
request, all books and records of ESCROW AGENT relating to the funds deposited and
disbursed hereunder.

6. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF ESCROW AGENT
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6.1 ESCROW AGENT shall maintain the accounts called for in this Agreement
under the direct supervision and control of ESCROW AGENT.

6.2 A fiduciary relationship shall exist between ESCROW AGENT and
Purchasers, and ESCROW AGENT acknowledges its fiduciary obligations.

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SPONSOR

7.1 SPONSOR agrees that SPONSOR and its agents, including any selling agents,
shall immediately deliver all deposits and payments received by them prior to closing of an
individual transaction to ESCROW AGENT.

7.2 SPONSOR agrees that it shall not interfere with ESCROW AGENT'S
performance of its fiduciary duties and compliance with the Attorney General's regulations.

7.3 Sponsor agrees to indemnify the Escrow Agent against all losses or damages
incurred by the Escrow Agent in the performance of its duties under the Escrow Agreement.
except for those caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Escrow Agent.

8. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

8.1 This Agreement shall remain in effect unless and until it is cancelled, by

either:

() Written notice given by SPONSOR to éSCROW AGENT of cancellation
of designation of ESCROW AGENT to act in said capacity, which cancellation shall take
effect only upon the filing of an amendment with the Department of Law providing for a
successor ESCROW AGENT; or

(b) The resignation of ESCROW AGENT upon giving notice to SPONSOR
of its desire 1o so resign, which resignation shall take effect only upon the filing of an
amendment with the Department of Law providing for a successor ESCROW AGENT: or

{c} Al units offered pursuant to the plan have been sald and all sales
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transactions have been consummated.

8.2 Upon termination of the duties of ESCROW AGENT as described in paragraph
8.1 above, ESCROW AGENT shall deliver any and all funds held by it in escrow and any and
all contracts or documents maintained by ESCROW AGENT to the new escrow agent.

9. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

9.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon SPONSOR, Purchaser and ESCROW

AGENT and their successors and assigns.
10. GOVERNING LAW.

10.1 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the
laws of the State of New York.

11. ESCROW AGENT'S COMPENSATION,

11.1 SPONSOR agrees that ESCROW AGENT'S compensation shall not be paid from
escrowed principal nor from any interest accruing thereon and that compensation to ESCROW
AGENT, if any, shall not be deducted from escrowed funds by any financial institution under
any circumstance.

12. SEVERABILITY.

12.1 1f any provision of this Agreement or the application thercof to any person or
circumstance is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement or the applicationtof such provision to other persons or to other circumstances shall
not be affected thereby and shall be valid and enforceable 1o the fullest extent permitted by
law.

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.
13.1 This Agreement, read together with GBL Section 352-e(2b) and the Attorney

(eneral's regulations, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
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subject matter hereof,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have exceuted this Agreement as (o the

day and year first written above.

PURCHASER

ESCROW AGENT
Woods Oviatt Gilman LLP

BY:

Paula A. Lapin, Esq.

SPONSOR

RIVERS RUN, LLC

BY:

Patrick Tabin, Manager
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1900 Main Place Tower
Buffalo, New York 14202

P 7162483200 F 716.854.5100

700 Crossroads Building
2 State Street, Rochester, New York 14614

P 5859872800 F585.454,3968

Writer's Direct Dial Number: 585.445.2750
Writer's Direct Fax Number: 585.445.2650
tmait: plapin@woodsoviatt.com

woodsoviatt.com

January 23, 2015

Stephen E. Hall, Esq.

Suite 400

36 West Main Street
Rochester, New York 14614

Re:  Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc.
Amendment No, 11

Dear Steve: -

I am enclosing Amendment No. 11 to the Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc,
Offering Plan which has been accepted by the Attorney General. I have not received the acceptance
letter yet, but will forward it upon receipt. In the meantime, this amendment must be sent to all
owners and placed in the front of the offering plans given out going forward, If there are any new
contract purchasers, they must receive it as well. Please keep a record of who you send it to and on
what date, Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

Paula A. Lapin
PAL/sz
Please direct responses to Rochester Office

Enclosure

ce:  Mr. David Christa (w/enclosures) /

(2651887: ) The art of representing peoples



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.,
AMENDMENT NO. 11

This is the Eleventh Amendment to the Offering Plan for the Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc. The primary purpose of the amendment is to disclose a change to the Sponsor.

1. Sixteen (16) lots remain unsold. They are Lots 101-104, 801-804, 901-904 and
1701-1704. One lot, Lot 1501, is under contract, and expected to close on December 29, 2014,

2. The original Sponsor transferred control of the Board to the homeowners in
September of 2011.

3. A Purchase Agreement between the Sponsor and Rivers Run Holdings LLC was
executed on November 14, 2014. The closing occurred on December 15, 2014. Rivers Run
Holdings LLC is the Substituted Sponsor of the plan and will build out the remaining homes.
The principal of Rivers Run Holdings LLC, is David Christa, an experienced home builder in the
upstate New York area. He is also one of the principals of the original Sponsor. Rivers Run
Holdings LLC has assumed all obligations of the original Sponsor as of the date of closing,

4. The Substituted Sponsor is not paying Association expenses for any lots.

5. The Substituted Sponsor is current on all real estate taxes for the property, The
County taxes for 2014 were $4,782.32 and the School taxes for 2014-2015 were $4,912.56.

They were adjusted as between the parties at the closing
6. There are no homes oceupied by tenants.

7. Sponsor’s obligationé to the homeowner’s association which will become due in
the next twelve (12) months are payment of Association expenses for its completed homes, as
they are built.

8. The source for Sponsor's payments in paragraph numbers 5 and 7, above, are sales
and other assets of Substituted Sponsor.

b. Unsold units subject to the Offering Plan are not subject to any mortgages.

10.  The Substituted Sponsor is current on all financial obligations relating to the
Homeowners Association.

11. David Christa, principal of the Substituted Sponsor, was also a principal in the
Sagamore on East Condominium, CD 03-0170, 130 East Avenue, Rochester, New York and the
Plains at Parish Homestead HOA (HO07-0014), Oneonta, New York. Both of these projects are
now sold out. Neither Substituted Sponsor nor its principal own any units in any other
condominium or homeowners association in New York State, The offering plans for these

{2604967: )



»

projects are available for inspection at the office of the Sponsor and at the office the New York
State Department of Law, 120 Broadway, 23rd Floor, New York, New York 10271,

12, A 2015 budget is attached as Exhibit A. Financial statements for 2013 are
attached as Exhibit B.

13. The Declaration has been amended to put restrictions on leasing. A copy of the
Declaration is attached as Exhibit C.

14. A new Certification of Sponsor is attached as Exhibit D. A new M-10 Broker-
Dealer Statement is attached as Exhibit E.

15. There have been no other material changes of facts and circumstances affecting
the property which is the subject of this offering or the offering itself,

- RIVERS RUN, LLC, Sponsor
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Rivers Run

HOMEOWNERS ASSOGCIATION

Praposed Budget - Fiscal Year

11718 TO 12/31/15.

Budgetl Budyet
2013 2014
37 Uplts 43 Units
($260/MO) {$265/M0)
INCONE
HOA fees % 1248001 & 138,740
Intetiiel/Cable feas § 26,627
Interest i -
Total Income $ 124800 & 165,367 |:
EXPENSES
Audit % 2,000/ %
Buliding/Hepalrs/Supplies 3,000
Cable / Internet
Electric 4,000
Fertilizallon 3,400
Hospitallty Commities 1,300
Corporation Tax 100
Insurance 15,000
Legal 1,500
Managemerst 7,200
Offict Expense 700
Tree malnitenance
Real Eslate Tax 3300
Reluge 7.000
Snow 25,434
Summer 28,000
Total Operaling Expenses 102,934 143
Transier to Reserve 21,866 22,320 |
. 17.82% 13,502
TOTAL BUDGET $  124800]% 165,879

Cable/internet fees

§ 21.600]%

28,827

Cable / Internat incorne

3 24000 | §

28,827

EXHIBIT A



RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATT ON, INC,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

EXHIBIT B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS > REPORT

To the Board of Directors and the Homeowners
Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rivers Run Homeowners
Association, Inc., which comprise the balance sheets ag of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevani to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material'misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
 reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Jjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of imaterial misstatement of the financia)
staternents, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control,
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inclydes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounling estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

EXHIBIT B



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
the financial position of Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc. at December 31,2013 and
2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

%%M%@ <

Rochester, New York
February 24, 2014

in all material respects,

EXHIBIT B



RIVERS RUN HOME QO WNERS ASSOCIATION, INC,

BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

Assets ~

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable from homeowners
Other receivables ‘

Prepaid expenses

Total assets

ASSETS

o
o
o

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities ‘
Accounts payable
Advance payments from homeowners
Accrued income fax

Total liabilities
Fund balances
Operating

Major maintenance

Total fund balances

2012

$ 58,617 § 46,615

0 1,781

0 616

4,395 4,516

$ 63,012 §$ 53,528
2013 2012

$ 9,588 § 9,751

3,803 2,403

68 74

13,549 12,228

(20,827) (25,086)

70,290 66,386

49,463 41,300

$ 63,012 3 53,528

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' Ieport,
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIA TION, INC,

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

]
[a]
W
[
[a]
[
N

|
|

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of revenues over (under) expenses 3 8,163 § (16,009)
Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues over (under)
expenses to net cash and cash equivalents
provided (used) by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in: k

Accounts receivable from homeowners 1,781 177

Other receivables 616 470

Prepaid expenses 121 (1,760)
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable (163) 8,441

Advance payments from homeowners 1,450 (879)

Accrued income taxes (6) (26)

Net cash and cash equivalents provided (used)

by operating activities 12,002 (9,586)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of yerr 46,615 56,201
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year : $ 58,617 § 46,615

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for income taxes ' $ 74§ 82

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ Teport.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCTAT 10N, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

The Association was incorporated under Section 402 of the New York State Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law on November 16, 2005, for the purpose of maintaining the common areas
(consisting of exteriors, asphalt, lawns and grounds) of sixty-two units, of which forty-three are
sold, located in Henrietta, New York. The homeowners elect a board of directors who hire an
independent property management firm to manage the Association,

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Association considers all highly liquid Qinvestments with
maturifies of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fund ‘Accounting - The Association uses fund accounting, which requires that funds, such ag
operating funds and funds designated for future major repairs and replacements, be classified
separately for accounting and reporting purposes. Disbursements from the operating fund are
generally at the discretion of the board of directors and property manager. Disbursements from
the major maintenance fund generally may be made only for designated purposes.

Income Taxes - Pursuant to the Tax Reform Act of 1976, homeowner associations are permitted
to make an annual election to be treated as a regular corporation or a tax exempt organization.
Bach year the Association will file its tax returns under the election which is most beneficial to
the organization. Under Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code, taxes are paid on non-exempt

function income (principally interest, net of expenses),

The Association’s tax returns for the years ending 2010, 2011 and 2012 are subject to -
examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from

those estimates.

Subsequent Events - In preparing these financal statements, the Association has evaluated events
and transactions for potential recognition and disclosure through February 24, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be jssued.

See independent auditors’ report.
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIA TION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 3: OWNERS’ ASSESSMENTS

Monthly assessments to owners for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 was $260 and
$210, respectively, of which a portion is allocated to the major maintenance fund. The annual
budget and assessments of owners are determined by the board of directors, The Association
retains any year end operating surplus to be used in future years, As of January 1, 2014, momnthly
assessments increased to $265. There is also an additional charge to homeowners who want

cable television and internet,

The Association’s policy is to retain legal counsel and place lens on the properties of
homeowners whose assessments are significantly in arrears,

' NOTE 4: COMMITMENTS

The Association has entered into an agreement with Crofton Corporation for management of its
operations. The agreement provides for a monthly fee of $16 per completed unit until December
31, 2014,

NOTE 5: FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

The Association has elected to accumulate funds for future major repairs and replacements,
Accumulated funds are accounted for separately and generally are not available for expenditures

for normal operations.

The board of directors and management company determine amounts to be allocated to the major
maintenance fund, Actnal expenditures may vary from the estimated fature expenditures, and the -
variations may be material. Therefore, amounts accumulated in the major maintenance fund may
not be adequate to meet all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If additional funds
are needed, the Association has the right to increase regular assessments, pass. special
assessments, or delay major repairs and teplacements until funds are available,

NOTE 6: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Association’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents. The Association places its cash investments with high
credit quality institutions. At times such investments may be in excess of the FDIC insurance
limit, The Association routinely assesses the financia) strength of these organizations and, as a
consequence, believes that its credit risk exposure is limited,

See independent auditors’ report,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors and the Homeowners
Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Rivers Run Homeowners Association, Inc. as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and our report thereon dated February 24,
2014, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears on page 1.
Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The information on future major repairs and replacements, which is the responsibility of
the Association’s management, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on if,

Z;\Q,%o %m@ @

Rochester, New York
February 24, 2014
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RIVERS RUN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATT ON, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE

MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2013

Crofton Associates, Inc. prepared a study during 2013, to estimate the remaining useful lives and
the replacement costs of components of common property. The cosis are based upon estimated
current replacement costs,

The following unaudited table is based on {he study and presents significant information about
the components of common property.

Estimated . Estimated
Remaining Useful Current
Components Lives (Years) Replacement Costs
Asphalt sealing . 3 i 10,068
Asphalt/catch basins- repairs 5 5,000
Asphalt/catch basins - resurface 17-18 200,000
Roofs 18-21 180,000
Sidewalks é 16-19 74,000
Gutters/downspouts 18-21 20,000
Trim painting Annually 4,000-4,500
Misc Annua]ly 1,000

See independent auditors’ report on supplemental information.
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